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Financial Highlights
LR

2016 2015
ZE-RNE —T—FHF %
Increase/
US$'000 US$'000 (Decrease)
FEx FET #,CR)
I Y Y .
Operating Results REXE
Revenue Wz 94,053 97,872 (3.9)
EBITDA BRAB s - B -
e R SRR T 1,711 2,958 (42.2)
Operating profit 4R 2255 K| 505 2,685 (81.2)
(Loss)/profit for the year F1E (F518), 5% F (613) 1,676  N/ATEFA
Financial Position B AR
Total assets BEMR 59,880 51,358 16.6
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHER 24,956 17,044 46.4
Net assets BEFE 40,944 32,588 25.6
Financial Ratio Brigte =
Current ratio (Times) MENEE X (1) 1.8 1.4 28.6
Gearing ratio (%) BAREEHLE (%) - - N/ATEH
Dividends BRE
Interim dividend per share (HK cents) S EIRR B (GBI
(Note) (Htat) 0.15 0.192 21.9)
Final dividend per share (HK cents) FRARBRE GBI)
(Note) (Hat) - 0.05 (100.0)
Full year dividend per share (HK cents) 2 FRE OBL)
(Note) (Htat) 0.15 0.242 (38.0)
Note: Hitat -

Dividends for the year ended 30 April 2015 have been adjusted for the effect of BZE_Z-RAFNA=+tHIFEZREER —Z—HF <A
Share Subdivision in June 2015. DI B AE L AR -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”), | wish to present the annual results of Daohe
Global Group Limited (“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “Daohe Global”) for
the year ended 30 April 2016.

The past year was challenging for our traditional business in sourcing and supply chain management. The
United States (“US") recovered steadily, but other major economies around the world did not. Our
revenue for the financial year reflects the slower global trade environment.

Nonetheless, | am confident that our strong and dynamic management team will lead Daohe Global to an
even brighter future, and will take on each challenge and seize it as an opportunity to grow the Group's
business.

Our commitment to diversifying and strengthening our business base and revenue model will continue
this year. We plan intensified efforts to identify and acquire attractive and growing businesses in industry
segments that are robust now, and hold promise for the future.

In the immediate future, we will continue to pursue opportunities for acquisition or investment in financial
services and in supply chain management related businesses. We will also be opportunistic in our
approach to acquiring or entering into other growth industries, as and when attractive business targets
present themselves.

To conclude, | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude and appreciation to
the Board for their support and contributions, to the devotion of our management team and staff over
the past year. At last but not least, | would like to give my sincerest thanks to our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their unflagging support. We aim to deliver fruitful rewards to our
shareholders.

ZHOU Xijjian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 July 2016

A
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR TN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, growth in the global economy
continued to be slow. There was a considerable divergence of
performance in the economies across regions. Although there
was a steady recovery in the US after a long-term quantitative
easing policy, the economy in Europe and Japan remained
sluggish. The economies in major developed countries have
remained weak and the economic growth in developing
countries has gradually decelerated, as a result of a decline in
commodity prices, weak global trade, volatility in financial
markets and a slowdown in capital flows. As a result, the
Group's overall shipments dropped by approximately 9.8% from
approximately US$241.1 million (equivalent to HK$1,880.6
million) last year to approximately US$217.4 million (equivalent
to HK$1,691.4 million) this year.

Revenue decreased by approximately 3.9% to approximately
US$94.1 million (equivalent to HK$732.1 million) this year from
approximately US$97.9 million (equivalent to HK$763.6 million)
last year.

Gross profit dropped by around 7.9% from approximately
US$25.0 million (equivalent to HK$195.0 million) last year to
approximately US$23.0 million (equivalent to HK$178.9 million)
this year.

With effective cost control, the general and administrative
expenses for the year reduced by approximately 4.3% to
approximately US$22.3 million (equivalent to HK$173.5 million),
compared with approximately US$23.3 million (equivalent to
HK$181.7 million) last year.

During the year under review, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of approximately US$0.9 million (equivalent to
HK$7.0 million) on goodwill of FIITEIREEREEEER A
A] (Shenzhen Guo Cai Sheng Tang Investment Co. Ltd.®).

For the year ended 30 April 2016, the Group reported a loss of
approximately US$0.6 million (equivalent to HK$4.7 million),
against a profit of approximately US$1.7 million (equivalent to
HK$13.3 million) last year. This was mainly attributable to the
decline in shipment of the Group and the impairment loss on
goodwill as aforementioned and an additional tax provision for
the Hong Kong Tax Case, details of which are set out in the
paragraph under “Hong Kong Tax Case”.

*  For identification purpose only
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RABBFERN  2EEERFERKE  Sib
BEBEBRBBAECE - BEERBBE—XYE
CERBURFEELEZSBERA - BRONAAB
TOATER - TEBREFHRNCERARKT
ERPBERNEEZRRBRENFETHRBERT
FRERHTE 2XBEFNEM - €RMEHN
EFERERNRBONE - Bt - NEEEENE
£ A EF#1241,100,0003 7T (FH 2 1,880,600,000
VETL) IR #09.8% 2 AN F [E £9 217,400,000 3 7T (46
£ 1,691,400,0005 7T ) ©

W 25 B 2= 8 #9 97,900,000 3= 7T (FH 55 72 763,600,000
B IT) T B #93.9% 2= 2K & #994,100,000 F 7T (48
£74732,100,0007T) ©

E N B EF 49 25,000,000 % 7T (#6357 195,000,000
BIL) TERAI7.9% 2= 7 £ #) 23,000,000 % 7T (8
£ 178,900,000/8 7T ) °

HRABBMIZEFIRA  AFE—MERITERAX
& 25 4F #923,300,000% T ( 48 7 181,700,000
¥ 7T ) AL A #4.3% Z #922,300,000 % 7T (18 & 7
173,500,00078 7T ) e

REBEFER  AEERFITERREREE
IEAR AR Z B HERRERIEA7900,000% T (1
£527,000,000%7T) ©

BE-_T-ANFOA=THLFE AEEKSF
J&5 18 47 600,000 3 7T (#H % 704,700,000/ 7T ) » =
£ BIIER15 5 M) %9 1,700,000 2 7T (#8557 13,300,000
AT - EEERRAKEMEER D LEERE
B8 (a0 LRt ) e ph &8 B0 7% (B 2 4E B SN IR
Bl (BN [EATGER] —BOE -
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Manag nt Discussion and Analysis

BEE RO
SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS DEDH
Operating Segmentation ReEDHE

The Group's business comprises two operating segments: (i)
sales of merchandise including garments, fashion accessories,
hardgoods and labels; and (ii) provision of services including
procurement and value-added services relating to the procurement
agency business.

AEBzEBOSMEKEDE : B EmiEE
(BREAIK - B BCH - MERIZH)  Ri)EH
AR75 (B IR EREE IR TG A S IR IR A5 B B 2 48
BR)

Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

HEE#E
BENAZ=tTHLEEE

2016 2015

—E-XREF —E—RHF

US$’ million US$’ million

BEER BEET
I T

Provision of services R RS 136.4 158.1

Sales of merchandise EmiEE 81.0 83.0

Total &5t 217.4 2411

Shipment value from the provision of services fell by
approximately 13.7% to approximately US$136.4 million
(equivalent to HK$1,061.2 million), accounting for roughly 62.7%
of the Group's total shipment value. This was mainly due to
decline in business from North America.

Shipment value from sales of merchandise also decreased by
approximately 2.4% to approximately US$81.0 million
(equivalent to HK$630.2 million), contributing to around 37.3%
of the Group's total shipment value.

RERBZ2NESHEEBETROIBIRE DN
136,400,000 3 7t (#2555 1,061,200,0005 7T ) * 16
NEEMEEREN627% - EEEENIEEMNE
TR A FTER

KEBmHEEZNEEREN TRL24%EL
81,000,000 3% 7T (48 55 7 630,200,000 % 7T ) + 1h 7
SENEEREN37.3%

BREFEEARAT ()0

T NEER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWRE DM

Geographical Segmentation

i

I
Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

HEEHE
BENA=1HIEE

2016 2015

—EB-RE —E-hF

US$’ million US$’ million

BEER BEXTT
[

North America JbEM 105.7 121.2

Europe BOM 50.9 58.8

Others Hip 60.8 61.1

Total B 217.4 2411

During the year under review, shipments to North America
dropped by approximately 12.8% to approximately US$105.7
million (equivalent to HK$822.3 million) due to a decrease in
order from certain US retail customers. Nevertheless, North
America remained the Group's largest market, contributing
approximately 48.6% of the Group's total shipment value.

The European market also weakened during the year under
review. Shipments to Europe decreased by approximately
13.4% to approximately US$50.9 million (equivalent to HK$396.0
million) mainly due to a decline in business in Russia and the
overall depreciation in European currencies. Shipments to
Europe presently account for approximately 23.4% of the
Group's total shipment value.

Shipments grouped under "Others”, comprising mainly
shipments to the southern hemisphere decreased slightly by
approximately 0.5% to approximately US5%$60.8 million
(equivalent to HK$473.0 million). “Others” represented
approximately 28.0% of the Group's total shipment value.
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Manag nt Discussion and Analysis
BEEWE DN

HONG KONG TAX CASE EENKER
Up to the year ended 30 April 2016, the Group has received HBHZE-ZZ— X XFMNA=1+HILFEE KEEDH
protective assessments amounting to approximately HBHHEAEER_TE=/_—_TEWNE_TFTH =

HK$155,000,000 (equivalent to US$19,923,000) from the Inland
Revenue Department of Hong Kong (“IRD") in respect of
queries on the modus operandi of the Group and the
chargeability of profits for the years of assessment from
2003/2004 to 2009/2010. In response to the assessments,
objections have been lodged by the Group. In addition, Tax
Reserve Certificates amounting to HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to
US$675,000) have been purchased by two subsidiaries of the
Company in pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded under
protective assessments for these years.

In April 2015, with the assistance of an independent tax advisor,
the Group submitted a settlement proposal as part of
negotiations with the IRD regarding this case. As at the close of
the reporting year, the case was still under review by the IRD
but based on the latest assessment of the independent tax
advisor, an additional provision of approximately HK$4,920,000
(equivalent to US$632,000) was made in the financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2016. Despite the unknown
outcome, the Group is of the view that sufficient tax provisions
have been made in the financial statements based on the
information available.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's financial position remains healthy with cash and
cash equivalents of approximately US$25.0 million (equivalent
to HK$194.5 million) as of 30 April 2016. In addition, the Group
has total banking facilities of approximately US$10.3 million
(equivalent to HK$80.1 million) including borrowing facilities of
approximately US$0.1 million (equivalent to HK$0.8 million) as
of 30 April 2016.

The Group has a current ratio of approximately 1.8 and a
gearing ratio of zero, based on no interest-bearing borrowings
and total equity of approximately US$40.9 million (equivalent to
HK$318.2 million) as of 30 April 2016. There has not been any
material change in the Group's borrowings since 30 April 2016.

Trade receivables increased from approximately US$4.2 million
(equivalent to HK$32.8 million) as of 30 April 2015 to
approximately US$4.4 million (equivalent to HK$34.2 million) as
of 30 April 2016. Gross trade receivables aged over 90 days,
which amounted to approximately US$0.8 million (equivalent to
HK$6.2 million), are being carefully monitored by management
and sufficient provision has been made.

TR FEMNEERN LGN FRET 2
B ZEEEHER(HRERD REMHFHY
155,000,0007% 7T (#8512 19,923,000 7T ) - &N &E
EEEATHRREERYE o 1o - KA B KM
BAREMEEAMNZEFTEREETIRAMES
2 % BB E & {E5,250,000%8 (A SR
675,000%7T) Z f#FiF ©

—E-RFNA - EBYREER BT
$’§l5{t$mi R— PR RIEREBRE R

BE— 8 c RBEFER - REBIDEFMNZ
Eff - BREBEBYRBERZ&HE ERE
ECT-RFOA=THLEFENMBERRTIE

H 5B G B 5 494,920,000 7T (8 2 72 632,000
To) c BEELRMDARMN  HEAEERECIRIER]
EBERNTBRERANEL TR R BEE -

B 7 B §8

REBEZHHBRAMERAER  RZT—FMA
Zt+HZR& KRS EEE B £25,000,0003 7T
(FBE 72 194,500,000787T)  IEAh » REBR -
—NFWMA=+HZRITRELE 485849 10,300,000
ZE T (780,100,000 7T) - A BiEEE R/
& #7100,000 2 7T (#5572 800,000 7T ) ©

AREBR-_ZE—ARXFNAZTBHZARBLERY
18- Hﬁkﬁﬁ%FE&%‘ 4858 49 40,900,000 £
JC (A8 74 318,200,0008 L) 518 - EEBAGELL X
AT - AKBEZEEAZZE-—A"FEA=THIU
PR 48 A {r] B2 KB o

EREZEFBE_ZT—HFNA :+azz@
4,200,000 3= 7 (#8 % 72 32,800,000 8 7T ) 12 i1 =
ZE*/\'EE@)EJf+E|Z%’]4,4OO,OOO§7‘E($EwEC
34,200,000 7T) - BRER 190 K 2 JEUNE 5 BR R 42
%Eiﬁ 800,000 & JT (#8514 6,200,000/ 7T ) * 3R 1E
TEEEBERTES  YOIEL T REE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W&

The Group's net asset value recorded as of 30 April 2016 was
approximately US$40.9 million (equivalent to HK$318.2 million).
It had no material contingent liability as of 30 April 2016, and no
material change has been identified since then.

The majority of the Group's transactions during the year under
review were denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
To minimise exchange risks, sales and purchases are generally
transacted in the same currency.

CORPORATE EVENTS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

During the year under review, the Board issued a circular to the
Company'’s shareholders dated 29 May 2015 proposing (i) that
each of the then-existing issued and unissued shares of US$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company be subdivided into
five subdivided shares of US$0.004 each (“Share Subdivision”);
(ii) to change the board lot size of trading in the shares from
2,000 shares to 10,000 subdivided shares as soon as possible
after the Share Subdivision becomes effective; and (iii) to
change the registered primary name of the Company from
“Linmark Group Limited” to “Daohe Global Group Limited”
and to adopt " EMIRIKEE B AR as its secondary name
to replace the Chinese name of " MZ &£ BB R A F] ” which has
been used for identification purpose only (“Change of
Company Name”).

The Share Subdivision and the Change of Company Name were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 22 June 2015. The
Share Subdivision became effective on 23 June 2015, and since
then, the board lot size of trading in the shares of the Company
has been changed from 2,000 shares to 10,000 subdivided
shares.

On 25 June 2015, the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda
issued a Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name and a
Certificate of Secondary Name certifying the Change of
Company Name with effect from 23 June 2015.

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2016
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On 17 June 2015, a total of 20,000,000 ordinary shares (or
100,000,000 ordinary shares after Share Subdivision) were
allotted and issued to six subscribers pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the subscription agreement dated 1 June 2015
entered by and between the Company and the subscribers.

As announced by the Company on 1 June 2015 and 17 June
2015, the net proceeds from the subscription were
approximately HK$64,200,000 (equivalent to US$8,252,000). The
Company intends to use the net proceeds from the subscription
to enlarge its capital base and prepare for any development
opportunities as and when they arise. As of the date of this
annual report, the Company has not used any of such proceeds
but has reserved part of such proceeds to finance the
acquisition of Hong Kong Wing Yue Asset Management Limited
as described below. The balance of such proceeds not used to
finance that acquisition will be used for other development
opportunities.

On 26 October 2015, ME 8 12 BRI AR AR (Linmark
Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited*), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Purchaser”) entered into a
conditional framework sale and purchase agreement (as
amended and supplemented by supplemental agreements
dated 3 November 2015 and 24 November 2015) (collectively,
“Framework Agreement”) with ZYTTEHZEREETEFR
2 7] (Shenzhen Guocai Lixin Investment Management Company
Limited*) and =R I8 £ (Wu Yueyun*) (“Vendors"), pursuant to
which, subject to certain conditions precedent, the Purchaser
agreed to acquire and the Vendors agreed to sell the entire
equity interests in AYITTER R EIRE B L BB AT (Shenzhen
Guo Cai Sheng Tang Investment Co. Ltd.*) ("Target Company”)
for an aggregate consideration of RMB10,000,000 (approximately
HK$12,195,122, at the exchange rate HK$1 to RMB0.82). The
consideration shall be satisfied as to 60% by the Purchaser
procuring the Company to allot and issue a total of 8,449,276
consideration shares of the Company (“Consideration Shares”)
to the Vendors as consideration for the acquisition of 60%
interest in the Target Company (“First Tranche Sale Interest”).

*  For identification purpose only
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BEEN W& D

Completion of the acquisition of the First Tranche Sale Interest
took place on 25 November 2015. A total of 8,449,276
Consideration Shares were allotted and issued to the Vendors
on 25 November 2015 in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Framework Agreement. Immediately following
the completion of the acquisition of the First Tranche Sale
Interest, the Company through the Purchaser, indirectly owned
a 60% interest in the Target Company.

According to the Framework Agreement, if the key personnel of
the Target Company have not resigned from their positions in
the Target Company after the expiry of six months from the
date of the Framework Agreement ("Evaluation Date”), and
the Purchaser is satisfied with their work performance, the
Purchaser shall enter into a supplemental agreement with the
Vendors in respect of the acquisition of the remaining 40%
interest in the Target Company (“Second Tranche Sale
Interest”) within ten business days from the Evaluation Date,
being on or before 9 May 2016.

The Company announced that as at 13 May 2016, the Purchaser
and the Vendors were still in discussion on the terms of the
supplemental agreement in respect of the acquisition of the
Second Tranche Sale Interest. The Company will make further
announcement(s) in compliance with the Listing Rules if the
discussions with the Vendors result in agreement over and entry
into a supplemental agreement.

Details of this share transaction including the reason for
entering into the Framework Agreement, the nature and terms
of the Framework Agreement (including but not limited to
conditions precedent of the share transaction), the class and the
number of shares issued under the Framework Agreement; and
the class of shares and the base under which the number of
shares may be issued upon completion of the Second Tranche
Sale Interest were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 26 October 2015, 3 November 2015, 24 November 2015,
25 November 2015 and 13 May 2016.

As disclosed by the Company in its announcement on 6
November 2015, options were granted to certain consultants on
6 November 2015 to subscribe for a total of 50,000,000 new
shares of the Company at a subscription price of HK$1 per share
of the Company with a validity period of 3 years and may only
be exercised if the average closing price of the Company's
shares for the five business days immediate preceding the
exercise date exceeds HK$2 per share of the Company.

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2016
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On 2 December 2015, Daohe Capital Limited (“Daohe
Capital”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding with
Hong Kong Wing Yue Financial Group Holdings Limited
("Vendor”), in relation to the possible acquisition of the entire
issued shares of Hong Kong Wing Yue Asset Management
Limited ("Target”) (“Acquisition”).

On 22 January 2016, Daohe Capital entered into an agreement
in relation to the Acquisition (“Agreement”) with the Vendor,
pursuant to which Daohe Capital conditionally agreed to
purchase and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire
issued shares of the Target at an aggregate consideration of
HK$14.5 million plus the net assets value of the Target as at
completion of the Acquisition, or the latest practicable date
prior to completion of the Acquisition that Dache Capital and
the Vendor may agree, provided that if such value exceeds
HK$3 million, such net assets value, for the purpose of the
Agreement (and determination of the consideration for the
Acquisition), shall be deemed to be HK$3 million.

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, a non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company, is the
sole shareholder and sole director of the Vendor. The Vendor is
therefore an associate of Mr. Zhou and a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Acquisition, which is a connected transaction,
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 2
December 2015 and 22 January 2016.

As at the date of this annual report, the completion of the
Acquisition is still subject to condition(s) precedent of the
Agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W&

REMUNERATION POLICY AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT
SCHEME

As of 30 April 2016, the Group had 361 staff members (2015: 382
staff members). Total staff costs for the year under review
amounted to approximately US$15.0 million (equivalent to
HK$116.7 million) (2015: US$15.7 million (equivalent to HK$122.5
million)). The Group offers competitive remuneration schemes
to its employees based on industry practices, along with
individual and the Group’s performance. In addition, the
Company has a share option scheme for eligible staff and
discretionary bonuses are payable to staff based on his or her
individual performance and the Group's performance.

PROSPECTS

The global economy is expected to remain vulnerable, as there
is faster-than-expected slowdown in developing economies
while the recovery in developed economies is slower-than-
expected. The global economic activities are expected to
remain subdued in a near-term.

The macroeconomic environment is not favorable to the
Group's existing business. China, being the world’s second
largest economy, is undergoing an economic transformation
with structural change; the price of commodities is weakening;
and the US is implementing a tightened monetary policy.
Manufacturing activities and trade are thus remain weak
globally. Besides, consumer spending remains suppressed while
the uncertainty and instability of the global economy continued.

In recent years, the buying pattern of consumers has shifted to
online shopping through e-commerce platform or digital
devices, leaving many of the traditional players continue to
suffer from excess stock and declining sales. In addition, in the
era of information and digital, with a high price transparency
and a keen competition in today’s consumer market, consumers
expect to buy at a lower price or discount, this further lead to a
markdown in price in order to maintain the business. Along with
the deflation on customer’s retail price, the Group is also facing
challenges of increase in labour and other operating costs.

In order to cope with these difficulties, the Group continues to
diversify its product portfolio and provide value-added services
to strengthen its relationships with customers, as well as to
implement cost controls and explore more potential low cost
sourcing markets to enhance the Group's competitiveness in

pricing.
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Manag nt Discussion and Analysis

We note the growth in demand for financial services and believe
that certain acquisitions/proposed acquisitions during the year
under review and up to the date of this annual report represent
opportunities for the Group to diversify and broaden its
business base. The Group will actively seek potential business
and high-growth investment opportunities. The Group will also
strive to provide better value-added services to our existing
customers and maintain long-term relationships with them.

Looking forward, the Group will pay extra efforts to address
customers’ needs and explore new business opportunities,
aiming to bring a greater return to our shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREHEERBER

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, aged 41, was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company and the
chairman of the Board with effect from 5 February
2015. Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of business
experience. Mr. Zhou is the president of & & &
Mg & E X & BB R 2 A (Guangdong Daohe
Investment Group LLC*) (“Guangdong Daohe”).
Guangdong Daohe is a multi-industry company
which is engaged in a wide range of businesses
including but not limited to liquor, drinking water,
film and television, catering and Internet
technology. Mr. Zhou obtained a master’s degree
in business administration from the Business
School of Nanjing Normal University in 2011.

Executive Directors and senior management

Mr. ZHANG Qi, aged 41, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the chief
executive officer of the Group with effect from 5
February 2015. Mr. Zhang has over 17 years of
business experience, and is currently the chief
executive officer of Joymain Health Industry Group,
which is principally engaged in the research and
development, production, sale and service of
healthcare products. Mr. Zhang obtained a
master’'s degree in business administration from
the Business School of Nanjing Normal University
in 2011.

*  For identification purpose only

Daohe Global Group Limited

Annual Report 2016

FHTES

Am@AE Wt —5m R-FT—1F
“AABBREZERARFENITES
REFSIFE AXLEHEERA_TFE
B AEERBERENKREERS
BERAR(EREME=EEK - ER
BURBITERAR EZEALZE
% BRETRREE  KBK BF
RE®R - BERLEBERM - BEER
—E - FRGERMBAZHERT
IR L2

BITEEREREER

REELE WK R-FT-hF—
ARBRERER/RARRAITESHRA
SEITHAE - RELHEAEBTLEFE
&5 BATATIKERERSE ZH
1THE - PIRREBEEXEETIZNER
BEmMHTE - £E - HERRS ° &
FER T ——FRSH B AEH
Bl TREERRELTSM0 -

* (EHRES



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors and senior management

(continued)

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, aged 46, was
appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 September 2010. Mr.
Wong has been the president of the Group since 5
February 2015 and the chief financial officer of the
Group since 2006. Prior to that, Mr. Wong was the
head of corporate development department of a
Greater China based supply chain management
solutions provider and consumer products
distributor, primarily responsible for business
development, mergers and acquisitions and
investor relations activities. Previously, Mr. Wong
had worked at several major international financial
institutions where he gained extensive experience
in finance, investments and banking. Mr. Wong
holds a Master of Business Administration degree
in finance from Boston University in the US, and a
Bachelor of Science degree from The University of
British Columbia in Canada.

Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil, aged 44, was
appointed as an executive director of the
Company and general counsel and head of
development and investments of the Group with
effect from 5 February 2015. Mr. Hwang has been
the company secretary of the Company since
August 2015. He is an independent director of First
Sponsor Group Limited, a company listed on the
Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited, and a consultant of Zhong Lun
Law Firm. Mr. Hwang was admitted as an advocate
and solicitor in Singapore in 1998, as a solicitor in
England and Wales in 2000 and as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in 2004. He was previously the founder
and managing partner of a US law firm’s Hong
Kong office. Mr. Hwang has over 18 years’
experience in advising on financial regulatory
matters, corporate finance and mergers and
acquisitions transactions. Mr. Hwang has a LL.B.
(Honours) degree from the National University of
Singapore, and a Master of Science degree in
Global Finance jointly granted by New York
University's Stern School of Business and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. He
holds a solicitor’s practising certificate with the Law
Society of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENeREEBER

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, aged 55, has been
an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 2002. Mr. Wang is a managing
director of 698 Capital Limited, a private Asian
investment firm. Previously, Mr. Wang was a board
and audit committee member of NASDAQ listed
Homeinns Hotel Group, one of China's leading
hotel chains. Mr. Wang was also a member of the
board and chief executive officer of GigaMedia
Limited, a NASDAQ listed online entertainment
and game provider. Mr. Wang was also previously
a co-founder and executive director of KGI Asia
Limited, an investment bank and securities
brokerage. Mr. Wang has also served on the board
of directors of several finance and technology
companies in the region and was previously a
member of the board and audit committee chair of
Softbank Investment International (Strategic)
Limited (now known as China Renji Medical Group
Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang received
his Juris Doctorate degree from Yale Law School
and practised corporate and securities law in Hong
Kong and New York. He also holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree from the University of California at Los
Angeles in the US.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, aged 68, has been an
independent non-executive director of the
Company since 2005. Mr. Tse is a fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Mr. Tse was a past
president and a former member of the audit
committee of the HKICPA. He joined KPMG in
1976, became a partner in 1984 and retired in
March 2003. Mr. Tse was a non-executive chairman
of KPMG's operations in the PRC and a member of
the KPMG China advisory board from 1997 to 2000.
Mr. Tse is currently an independent non-executive
director of CNOOC Limited, China Telecom
Corporation Limited, SIM Holdings Limited,
Sinofert Holdings Limited and China Huarong
Asset Management Co., Ltd., all listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tse is also an
independent non-executive director of OCBC
Wing Hang Bank Limited (formerly known as Wing
Hang Bank, Limited whose shares were withdrawn
from listing on the Stock Exchange with effect from
16 October 2014). He was an independent non-
executive director of China Construction Bank
Corporation, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from 2004 to 2010. Mr. Tse
was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of CCB International (Holdings) Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of China Construction
Bank Corporation in March 2013. Mr. Tse is a
member of the International Advisory Council of
the People’s Municipal Government of Wuhan. Mr.
Tse holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree
from The University of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENeREEBER

Independent non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. WONG Chak Keung, aged 49, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 November 2015 and
an audit committee member of the Board with
effect from 5 May 2016. Mr. Wong has been in the
accounting profession for over 15 years. In addition
to his working experience in an international
accounting firm in Hong Kong, Mr. Wong has also
worked for listed and other companies engaged in
investments, accounting, educational business,
manufacturing, and mergers and acquisitions. Mr.
Wong holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business from
The University of Southern Queensland in Australia.
He is @ member of the HKICPA and CPA Australia
respectively. Mr. Wong is currently an independent
non-executive director of Bingo Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8220), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive
director of China Minsheng Financial Holding
Corporation Limited (formerly known as China
Seven Star Holdings Limited) (stock code: 245), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, during the period from January 2011 to
December 2015. Mr. Wong was an executive
director of China Investment Development Limited
(stock code: 204), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, during the period
from April 2011 to April 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as
the Corporate Governance Code (“Code”) of the Company.
The Board is committed to complying with the Code to the
extent that the Directors consider it to be applicable to the
Company and practical.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise
an effective Board, sound internal controls, appropriate
independence policy, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company.

During the year under review, save for the deviation from Code
Provision E.1.2 which is explained in the relevant paragraph
below, the Company fully complied with the Code Provisions in
the CG Code.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company and the explanations on the deviation from the Code
Provision are summarised as follows:

The Board

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership
and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. All Directors should make
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or
through Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position
to exercise its powers in an informed manner, management
provides monthly management accounts and updates to the
Directors who also have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if
necessary. Furthermore, the types of decisions to be delegated
by the Board to management include implementation of the
strategy and direction determined by the Board, operation of
the Group's businesses, preparation of financial statements and
operating budgets, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report
NAEERWME

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the
Board, the powers and authorities reserved to the full Board
include the following but are not limited to:

1. matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder and/or a Director;

2. making decisions on whether or not to declare,
recommend or pay dividend;

3. approving (i) the publication of preliminary announcement
of the profits or losses in respect of annual results or
interim results and (i) the related financial statements and/
or accounts;

4. approving any proposed change in the capital structure,
including any redemption of its securities listed on the
Stock Exchange;

5. approving any decision to change the general nature of
the business of the Company;

6. approving any discloseable transaction, major transaction,
very substantial acquisition and disposal or connected
transaction within the meaning of Chapters 14 and 14A of
the Listing Rules;

7. matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which
require approval at a full Board meeting; and

8. any regulations or resolutions or restrictions that may be
imposed upon the committees by the Board from time to
time.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are more particularly
discussed below.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive officer and
senior management to discharge its responsibilities. Save for
the power reserved by the Board or other Board committees,
the Executive Committee currently comprising all of the executive
Directors is responsible for the day-to-day management and
operation functions of the Group.

24 Daohe Global Group Limited
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Corporate governance functions

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the
Board, the Board is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out below or it may delegate
the responsibility to a committee or committees:

1. to develop and review the Group's policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

5. to review the Group's compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company; and

6. to review and monitor the Group's process of disclosure,
including assessing and verifying the accuracy and
materiality of inside information and determining the form
and content of any required disclosure.

During the year under review, the Board handled the disclosure
of inside information in accordance with its internal policy on
disclosure of inside information and continuous disclosure
policy and materiality guidelines.

Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of
the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate
activities of the Group has been arranged by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
NAEERWME

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making.

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report,

- Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil was appointed the company
secretary and authorised representative of the Company
under the Listing Rules in replacement of Ms. CHEUNG
Hoi Yin, Brenda with effect from 14 August 2015;

- Mr. WONG Chak Keung was appointed independent non-
executive Director and a member of Audit Committee with
effect from 1 November 2015 and 5 May 2016
respectively;

- Mr. ZHANG Li was appointed the co-chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and a member of Executive
Committee with effect from 8 April 2016 and resigned with
effect from 12 July 2016; and

- Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS ceased to be an
independent non-executive Director and a member of
audit committee with effect from 5 May 2016.
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The Board currently comprises seven Directors in total, withone ZEEE@ BB AR ESHRK - B —(IIEH
non-executive Director, three executive Directors and three {T&2 %« Z(UHITEE R =B IFHITES -
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors during the U TARBBEFERNLREEAREBHINES
year under review and up to the date of this report were as

follows:

Name of Directors

EEnE

Positions

B

ZHOU Xijian
ISk

ZHANG Qi
I

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis
BEF

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil

WANG Arthur Minshiang
T

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
HELT

WONG Chak Keung
HER

ZHANG Li
55 Fl

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Chairman and non-executive Director

EFERIFMITER

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITESRITHAER

Executive Director, President and Chief Financial Officer

HITES - BHRV AL

Executive Director, General Counsel and Head of Development and Investments
Company Secretary (appointed with effect from 14 August 2015)

WITES AREERERIRETE
NAME(RZE—RFNATHAEZT)

Independent non-executive Director

BIUIFRTES

Independent non-executive Director

BIUJFATESF

Independent non-executive Director (appointed with effect from 1 November 2015)

BURTEE(R_E—RAF+—F—HEZME)

Co-Chairman and executive Director (appointed with effect from 8 April 2016 and
resigned with effect from 12 July 2016)

BEEERITES (RS- "FOAN\BEZET  TR_T—RELA+HE
BHE)

Independent non-executive Director (ceased to act with effect from 5 May 2016)
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The Company currently has four Board committees. The table
below provides membership information of these committees

on which each Board member serves.

Board Committee

ARBBERRBENEEELZES - TRIEHSE
EFENEAEZEFLZE ST EENRA -

EEXEY Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination
Director Committee Committee Committee Committee
2= HITEEE ERZEEE FMHZEEE REEEE

I T .

ZHOU Xijian Bk C
ZHANG Qi REF C M
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis =EF M
HWANG Han-Lung, Basil =ERE M
WANG Arthur Minshiang Far M C M
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HELT C M M
WONG Chak Keung =ER M
Notes: 5T -
C Chairman of the relevant Board committees C EHREEZESNER
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EREEZEGHKE

Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Mr. ZHANG Qi are business partners and
are directors and shareholders of Daohe Global Investment
Holding Limited ("Daohe Global Investment”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed above, none of
the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) with each other.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

According to the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board
on 30 August 2013, selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
skills, knowledge, industry and professional experience, cultural
and educational background, gender, age and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will be able to bring to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee is delegated to review this policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness to suit the needs of
the Company and will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
reviewed (i) the appointments of new Directors and the
co-chairman; and (i) the structure, size and composition of the
Board and was of the opinion that the Board is well balanced
and diversified, and with the appropriate structure, size and
necessary skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives required for the business of the Group.

The Board's composition and the biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the paragraph headed “Composition”
above and in the section “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmation, the Company still considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Independent non-executive Directors who have served
for more than nine years

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang and Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
have served as independent non-executive Directors for more
than nine years. To comply with Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG
Code, Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang and Mr. TSE Hau Yin,
Aloysius retired voluntarily and were re-elected as Directors at
the 2012 and 2014 annual general meetings of the Company
held on 27 August 2012 and 28 August 2014 respectively.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
The Board is responsible for approving any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Company's bye-laws (“"Bye-laws”) provide that all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a
causal vacancy shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment.

The Bye-laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

During the year under review, the Board approved the changes
to the Board and to the composition of the committees of the
Board, at a meeting and by passing written resolutions, based
on the recommendations of the Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, the Board recommended the re-
appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at the
general meetings of the Company.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 22 June
2015, the three new Directors who were appointed on 5
February 2015 retired and were re-elected as Directors.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
the new Director who was appointed on 1 November 2015 and
two other Directors will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. The Company’s circular to be
despatched to shareholders of the Company on or about 28
July 2016 will contain detailed information of the Directors
standing for re-election.
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Directors’ service agreements and letters of appointment
Mr. ZHOU Xijian, a non-executive Director, has been appointed
for a term of three years under a letter of appointment from
February 2015 and will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party by serving not less than six months’ notice in
writing.

Each of Mr. ZHANG Qi, Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis and Mr.
HWANG Han-Lung, Basil, being an executive Director, has
entered into a service agreement with the Company with an
initial term of three years from February 2015, September 2010
and February 2015 respectively, and will continue/continued
thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the other
not less than six months’ notice in writing.

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, an independent non-executive
Director, has first been appointed for a term of two years under
a letter of appointment. Such term has been renewed for a
further two years commencing from May 2016 upon expiry. The
appointment may be terminated by either party by giving to the
other not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, an independent non-executive
Director, has first been appointed for a term of two years under
a letter of appointment. Such term has been renewed for a
further two years commencing from May 2015 upon expiry. The
appointment may be terminated by Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
by serving not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. WONG Chak Keung, an independent non-executive
Director, has first been appointed for a term of one year under
a letter of appointment commencing from November 2015. The
appointment may be terminated by either party by giving to the
other not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, an independent non-
executive Director, has first been appointed for a term of two
years under a letter of appointment. The appointment may be
terminated by Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS by serving
not less than one month’s notice in writing. The Company and
Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS reached a consensus that
the term under the letter of appointment of Mr. Tulleners would
not be renewed upon its expiration on 4 May 2016.
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Disclosure of information on Directors

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, the changes in the information of the Directors since the
date of the annual report for the year ended 30 April 2015 of
the Company which are required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are disclosed in this annual
report.

Change to the emolument of Directors
Since the last published annual report, no changes were made
to the emolument of Directors.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company's expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on
changes and developments relating to the Group's business
and the legislative and regulatory environments in which the
Group conducts its business to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training. All Directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
They provided a record of training they received during the year
ended 30 April 2016 to the Company. Except for Mr. ZHANG Li
appointed with effect from 8 April 2016, who received director’s
induction on the first occasion of his appointment, each other
Director during the financial year namely Mr. ZHOU Xijian, Mr.
ZHANG Qi, Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, Mr. HWANG Han-
Lung, Basil, Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, Mr. TSE Hau Yin,
Aloysius, Mr. WONG Chak Keung and Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS received at least eight hours of training in the form
of attending seminars, receiving online training or self-study of
the publications issued by the regulators, professional bodies
and corporate lawyers during the year ended 30 April 2016.
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Regular Board meetings are held four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals primarily for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and
considering and approving the overall strategies, policies and
budgets of the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2016, the Board met seven times
mainly for considering and approving the audited final results
for the year ended 30 April 2015, change of company secretary
and authorised representative of the Company, unaudited
results for the three months ended 31 July 2015, a continuing
connected transaction, an acquisition which is a connected
transaction, unaudited interim results for the six months ended
31 October 2015, the revised Code, the revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, proposed appointment of a
new Director, unaudited results for the nine months ended 31
January 2016, budget of the Group for the year ending 30 April
2017 and renewal of the term of the letter of appointment of an
independent non-executive Director. At these board meetings,
the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group's business
updates and strategies.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the

meetings of the Board, Executive Committee, Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, annual

general meeting and special general meeting during the year
ended 30 April 2016 is set out below:

EEENEBE_T - R"FOA=ZTHLFENE
R WTZES BRZBEE FHZEER
REZBEEH BREAFAGRERENAE
SR EALFEEREIIMT -

=

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/ERNY
Executive Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual Special
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
Name of Directors BEpg Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Exg H7Z8% BHZEE FHZEEE REZEE BR BR
g3 3 &3 e ] BEXE KElAE
! | | | /| | | |
Non-executive Director FHTES
ZHOU Xijian ARR 57  NATER  NATER N 112 0/1 0/
Executive Directors HTES
ZHANG Qi RE 7 00 N/ATHER 171 22 1”n 171
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEE 1 0/0 212 /1 212 1 17
HWANG Han-Lung, Basil HEHE 6/7 0/0 22 N/ATER *1/2 1 17
ZHANG Li (Note 1) A (B 1) 17 00 NATER  NATER N NATER NATER
Independent non-executive Directors B ¥ {TES
WANG Arthur Minshiang TaH 717 NIATER 212 il 22 11 0/1
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (Note 2) EEDIGEY) 717 NIATER 202 17 22 01 1
WONG Chak Keung (Note 3) - ZAlER)) 44 NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS 7T NIATER 22 NATER  NATER 0N 11
(Note 4) GE)
Number of meetings held SENBITRY 7 0 2 1 2 1 1
Notes: ffeE -

1.
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Mr. ZHANG Li was appointed executive Director and the co-chairman of
the Board with effect from 8 April 2016. He was also appointed a member
of Executive Committee with effect from 8 April 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Li resigned as executive Director, co-chairman of the Board
and a member of Executive Committee with effect from 12 July 2016.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, chairman of the Audit Committee, has invited
Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, another member of the Audit Committee to
attend the Annual General Meeting in his absence.

Mr. WONG Chak Keung was appointed independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 November 2015. He was also appointed a
member of Audit Committee with effect from 5 May 2016.

Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS ceased to be an independent non-
executive Director and a member of Audit Committee with effect from 5
May 2016.

The Directors are not members of the committees at the relevant time but
attended the meetings by invitation.
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Under the Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the board committees to attend. Due to other
important engagement at the relevant time, Mr. ZHOU Xijian,
the chairman of the Board and chairman of the Nomination
Committee, was absent from the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 August 2015.

Apart from holding physical meetings, the Board and Board
committees also circulate written resolutions for approval by the
relevant members of the Board and Board committees except
for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a
conflict of interest which the Board has determined to be
material in compliance with Code Provision A.1.7 of the CG
Code.

The Board having considered the attendance records and
training records of the Directors and the confirmation provided
by each Director is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient
time performing his responsibilities.

Practices and conduct of meetings
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made
available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are generally sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or committee meeting
to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to senior management and
company secretary whenever necessary.

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer (who heads a
team of professional staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function) and company secretary of the
Company attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other Board and committee meetings, to advise on
business developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.
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The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
and final versions of minutes of Board meetings are normally
sent to Directors for their comments and records respectively,
in both cases within a reasonable time after each meeting is
held.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial
shareholder or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Bye-laws also
contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

Chairman and chief executive officer

Currently, the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Group are held by Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Mr.
ZHANG Qi respectively. Their respective responsibilities are
clearly defined and set out in writing, details of which are stated
below.

The chairman’s principal role is to provide leadership for the
Board on corporate and strategic planning, ensure proper
proceedings of the Board and encourage all Directors to have
active contributions to the Board's affairs.

Supported by the other executive Directors and management,
the chief executive officer’s principal role is to manage and
operate the Group’s day-to-day business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Board.

Board committees

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs.

Terms of reference of all Board committees are available on the
Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website.
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Current structure of the Board

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all the executive Directors
as follows:

ZHANG Qi (chairman of the committee)

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil

ZHANG Li (appointed member of the committee with effect
from 8 April 2016 and ceased to act as member of the
committee with effect from 12 July 2016)

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation functions of the Group to the Executive Committee
save to the extent that certain powers and authorities are
reserved to the full Board or the other Board committees. The
Executive Committee is also responsible for reviewing or
recommending to the Board the investment transactions of the
Group and has the power to approve transactions that would
not constitute notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules, connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules or capital market activities.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors as follows:

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (chairman of the committee)

WANG Arthur Minshiang

WONG Chak Keung (appointed member of the committee with
effect from 5 May 2016)

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS (ceased to act as member
of the committee with effect from 5 May 2016)

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company'’s annual reports and accounts, interim reports and
results announcements and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Directors. The Audit Committee also reviews and
monitors the external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process. The members meet
regularly with the external auditors and the Company’s senior
management for the review and supervision of the Company’s
financial reporting and internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for monitoring integrity of the
financial statements of the Company and the Company’s annual
reports and accounts and interim reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the CG Code, details of
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control and other
matters have been included in the employees’ handbook since
1 April 2012.

The Company amended the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, which took effect from 1 May 2016, in order to
conform to the revised Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to:

(@) review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the chief
financial officer (who heads a team of professional staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function) or external auditors before submission to the
Board;

(b) review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their
fees, terms of engagement and independence, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors
proposed by management;

(c)  review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures; and

(d)  review and recommend the Board to approve the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions
of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company which took place during the year
under review.

The Company's interim results for the six months ended 31
October 2015 and annual results for the year ended 30 April
2016 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the
external auditors on its independence and objectivity as
required by the HKICPA.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors during the year under review.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, the
majority of which are independent non-executive Directors, as
follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman of the committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
ZHANG Qi

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the Company’s
policy and structure for all the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee
shall consult the chairman and/or the chief executive officer of
the Company about their recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. As a result, the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of non-
executive Directors whereas the Remuneration Committee has
the authority to approve the remuneration of the individual
executive Directors and senior management of the Company
and its subsidiaries as well as share options related matters.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
passed written resolutions in recommending the remuneration
of a new independent non-executive Director and approving
the grant of share options to consultants. It also held one
meeting to determine and approve the remuneration of a new
executive Director.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, the

majority of which are independent non-executive Directors, as

follows:

ZHOU Xijian (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the

following:

(a)

(e)

review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company'’s corporate strategy;

identify individual suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, having regard to the requirements of the Listing
Rules;

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particulars the chairman and the chief

executive; and

ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business, and in that
regard, the Nomination Committee should assist the
Board to formulate and review a policy concerning
diversity of Board members.
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During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
passed written resolutions in recommending the appointment
of a new independent non-executive Director; and held two
meetings to recommend the appointment of a new executive
Director, to consider the renewal of the letter of appointment of
an independent non-executive Director, to note the non-
renewal of term of appointment of an independent non-
executive Director, to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board by reference to the Board Diversity Policy and to
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

Company secretary

Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil has been the company secretary
in replacement of Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda with effect
from 14 August 2015. He is an employee of the Group since
February 2015.

The company secretary supports the Board by ensuring an
unimpeded flow of information within the Board and that
policies and procedures formulated by the Board are followed.
He is responsible for advising the Board through the chairman
and chief executive officer on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of the Directors.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are
subject to the Board's approval in accordance with the Bye-
laws. Whilst the company secretary reports to the chief
executive officer on the Group’s company secretarial and
corporate governance matters, all members of the Board have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary.

Mr. Hwang confirmed that he has complied with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules and received more than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 30 April 2016.

Business objectives and strategies

The Company looks for improving the Group's long term
financial performance and avoids taking undue risks to make
short term gains at the expense of long term objectives. The
current business strategy is disclosed in the section “Prospects”
of the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.
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Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining the system of internal
controls of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. During
the year ended 30 April 2016, the Board conducted an annual
review of the Group's internal control system, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Board assessed the effectiveness
of internal control by considering reviews performed by the
Audit Committee and external auditors. The annual review also
considered the adequacy of resources, budget, training
programmes, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of
the Group's accounting and financial reporting function.

As delegated by the Board and Audit Committee, executive
management reviewed the design and implementation of
systems of internal controls based on annual assessment of the
Group's risk profile. Key control issues and recommendations
were reviewed by the Audit Committee. Management will
continue to carry out follow up actions agreed upon in response
to recommendations.

The Board had reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and decided to outsource the function to an independent
professional firm in financial year 2016/17.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its model code for
securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company, having made specific enquiries, obtained
confirmations from all the Directors that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 30 April 2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code ("Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees
who are likely to possess unpublished inside information in
relation to the Company or its securities.

No incident of non-compliance with the Employees Written
Guidelines by the relevant employees was noted by the
Company during the year ended 30 April 2016.
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Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
inside information announcements and other publications and
disclosures of the Company required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30
April 2016.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this
annual report.

Auditors’ remuneration

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 30 April 2016 amounted to approximately US$283,000
and US$20,000 respectively. The non-audit services were mainly
related to tax services.

Shareholders’ rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the
same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared.
The rights of the members (or shareholders) of the Company
(“shareholders”) are set out in, amongst other things, the Bye-
laws and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies
Act”).

Convening special general meeting on requisition
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company or at the registered office of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act. Under
bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

44 Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2016

BRAMBHRE2EE
EFGRRRADAFRRF WIS - WHH B
DRI TN RAR IR E DR R EE R
FAMEE 2 RE2H— BT B HR BRI
2 -

EEHRREAERBEARABE_T—AFN
A=1THLEFEZHBREK -

ARBIMNEZHMAT B MR 2 PRETIEHZ
BRENAFRAZ [BLZBERES] -

BTN =

ARBIMNEZBMABE —T—A"FHUA=1H
I FEZEZRB RIFEZREMEN 22D
51%7283,000 5 7T }2 20,000 € 7T » FEEZRBTIE
REBRBIRT

B SR AEF

ARAHEHRE —BERD - MERMHEHEERRK
CERAAIERE TR ZBE - ARBRR (T
RDOBEANEN(EFEHF) AR RERE
—HN—FRFPE(REED »

i

BREAFREFEFHAE

WiE2 Bk B EEF A ADQ R D EUR BT DR (B
BERARBIREAS E 2 IRERE) 52 —HIRE
BREBBAADNREEG HMBRAD R M
FEBHEME K EREETREQREFT74
EAABRRERRE  NEEEBEERkPIEHZ
TR EE - RIFARIHAIFES81E - ZAEENIE
2HBEREMEARET - WESE21BR
ETeAAEHZAS  HEEBRALATHE
BIBERARNEE74R) 2 R EBFAE -



The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to
be called can be sent to the head office and principal place of
business of the Company as set out in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report for the attention of
the company secretary.

Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request, deposit at the
registered office of the Company, inclusion of a resolution
relating to matters in a general meeting by following the
requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80
of the Companies Act.

The above request can be sent to the Company at its head
office and principal place of business as set out in the
"Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the company secretary.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of
the Companies Act, on the written requisition of members
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights or 100 members, at the expense of the requisitionists
unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall give
shareholders notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a
relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws, shareholders are entitled
to elect any person to be a Director at the annual general
meeting in accordance with bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws or at any
special general meeting by following the requirement set out in
bye-law 88 of the Bye-laws. Details of the procedures for
nomination of Directors for election are available on the
Company's website.

Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions
Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code, the Company
will arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days for all
other general meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors.
Where bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the
Company shall explain the reasons and material implications in
the notice of the meeting.
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Voting by poll

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at general meetings are contained in the
Bye-laws.

In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all
resolutions put to vote at general meetings of the Company are
taken by way of poll except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of

hands.

Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the
circular sent to shareholders prior to each meeting. The
chairman of a meeting shall ensure that an explanation of the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll is provided and
answer any questions from shareholders on voting by poll.

After each general meeting, the poll results will be published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the
manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ communication policy

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with them and
encourage their participation. The Company shall also make
available all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange
and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Board has established a shareholders’ right and communication
policy and will regularly review this policy to ensure its
effectiveness to suit the needs of the Company and to comply
with the relevant rules and corporate governance code.

Conduct of general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board.
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on
their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Board
committees or in their absence, other members of the Board or
its respective committees and the external auditors are available
to answer questions at the annual general meetings.
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Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can send their enquiries about shareholdings,
share transfer, registration and payment of dividend to the
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
head office and principal place of business of the Company as
set out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual
report for the attention of the chief financial officer and the
company secretary.

Details of the shareholders’ rights and communication policy
are also available on the Company’s website.

Investor relations

Designated senior management is responsible for communicating
and enhancing relationships with the investors of the Company.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in a timely manner.

As to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website, where information and updates on the
Company's business developments and operations, list of
directors and their role and function, constitutional documents,
terms of reference of the Board and its committees, procedures
of nomination of directors for election, Board Diversity Policy,
shareholders’ rights and communication policy, corporate
governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports
released to the Stock Exchange and other information are
posted. Information on the Company’s website is updated from
time to time.

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 30 April 2016.

Hong Kong, 14 July 2016
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Report of the Directors
EETWMES

The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2016.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year under
review by business and geographical segments as well as
information about major customers is set out in Note 4 to the
financial statements.

Financial results

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
73.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 0.15 HK cents per ordinary share,
totalling approximately US$681,000, was declared and paid to
shareholders during the year under review.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 April 2016.

Business review

A fair review of the Group's business and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position are
included in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section
on pages 8 to 17 of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be
found throughout this annual report, particularly in Note 33 to
the financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2016 can also be found on pages 69 and 70 of this
Report of the Directors and Note 34 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Financial Highlights”
and “Financial Review"” sections from pages 2 to 3 and pages
11 to 12 respectively of this annual report. Below is a discussion
on the Company's environmental policies and performance, the
Company’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
and an account of the Company'’s relationships with its key
stakeholders.
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Business review (continued)

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to reducing carbon emission and
saving resources. We have started monitoring our carbon
emission since 2013 with references made according to the EPD
(Environmental Protection Department) Guidelines, GHG
(Greenhouse Gas) Protocol and ISO 14064 standard.

During the year under review, we implemented several
measures to reduce greenhouse gas emission and save energy,
including replacing spotlights in showrooms with energy saving
LED lights, installing water saving taps in washrooms, installing
video conference facilities to reduce business travelling and
replacing copiers and printers with energy saving models.

Compliance

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the
Group. The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, with the support and assistance of the
legal and company secretarial department.

The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance as well as their subsidiary legislation,
codes and guidelines are the principal sources of our
compliance obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also
apply to our non-Hong Kong operations, and both in Hong
Kong and elsewhere, we rely on the assistance of external law
firms and professional advisers to manage our legal and
compliance risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes
in laws and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and
also regularly remind our staff of their compliance obligations.
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Business review (continued)

Key relationships with stakeholders

Employees

The Group's remuneration policy and staff development
scheme is set out in page 16 of this annual report.

The Group implemented comprehensive mechanisms to ensure
that high standard of ethical business practices are adopted
when our employees dealing with suppliers and service
providers. Our Staff Handbook states our policies in avoiding
conflict of interest and the whistle-blowing channels.

We are an equal opportunity employer. We embrace
anti-discrimination practices that protect potential and existing
employees from being disadvantaged or excluded on the basis
of gender, age, family status, sexual orientation, disability, race
or religion.

We strictly comply with local laws and regulations concerning
health and safety at work.

Customers

As a global supply chain management solutions provider and
business partner, the Group offers diverse and comprehensive
services to a wide range of customers including some of the
world’s leading retailers, well known brands, wholesalers, mail
order houses and department stores in North America, Europe,
Australia and South Africa. The Group continues to strengthen
ties with the customers and strives to meet their growing demand
on price and service level by reaching out for new supply base
and expanding into new product categories. To improve the
customer service level, the Group has set a claim alert system to
record and track the status of claims and complaints received
from customers.

Suppliers

The Group operates an international sourcing network with a
focus on emerging markets. Supplier management is the core
of our supply chain business, all the suppliers have been
evaluated by the Group based on their expertise, experience,
production capabilities and other production factors, and are
subject to constant performance review and evaluation by the
Group to improve their quality and efficiency. In addition, the
Group has developed an extensive CSR Compliance Manual
and Vendor Code of Conduct, and has a complete quality
assurance procedure in place for products produced by
suppliers before shipping to customers.
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Ultimate holding company

During the year under review, the Directors regard Daohe
Global Investment and Sino Remittance Holding Limited as the
controlling shareholders of the Company and Dache Global
Investment as the ultimate holding company of the Company.
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. ZHOU Xijian,
a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board.

As at 30 April 2016, Dache Global Investment through its four
wholly-owned subsidiaries indirectly held an aggregate of
approximately 62.68% of the then issued share capital of the
Company.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year under review are set out in Note 12
to the financial statements.

Share capital
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year
under review are set out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

Reserves and distributable reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 35 to the financial
statements respectively.

As at 30 April 2016, distributable reserves of the Company
consisted of the aggregate of contributed surplus and retained
earnings, which amounted to US$11,454,000 (2015:
US$11,482,000).

Bye-law 138 of the Bye-laws requires that no dividend shall be
paid or distribution be made out of contributed surplus if to do
so would render the Company unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due or the realisable value of its assets would
thereby become less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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Reserves and distributable reserves (continued)

In accordance with Section 54 of the Companies Act, the
Company shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of its contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

Equity-linked agreements

Other than (i) the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed below; (ii) the subscription of new shares under
general mandate completed on 17 June 2015 as disclosed in
page 13 of this annual report; (iii) the share transaction as
disclosed in pages 13 to 14 of this annual report; and (iv) the
proposed placing of new shares under general mandate and
the lapse of the relevant placing agreement as disclosed in
page 69 of this annual report, no equity-linked agreements that
have, will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that have,
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.

Share options and share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“2011 Share
Option Scheme"”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the annual general meeting of the Company on 29 August 2011.
The 2011 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years up to 2021, during which the Board or a committee
thereof may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

The Company has granted options (“Share Options”) under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme to certain consultants
("Grantees”) on 6 November 2015. The Share Options entitle
the Grantees to subscribe for a total of 50,000,000 new shares of
the Company at a subscription price of HK$1 per share of the
Company with a validity period of three years and may only be
exercised if the average closing price of the Company’s share
for the five business days immediate preceding the exercise
date exceeds HK$2 per share of the Company.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)
Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1.

Purpose
The primary purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme is

to provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons for

their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Eligible persons

The eligible persons under the 2011 Share Option Scheme

include:

U]

(i)

(iii)

any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive Director), employee or proposed employee
(whether full time or part time) of, or any individual for
the time being seconded to work for, any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder of the Company; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any controlling shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder of the Company; or

any business partner, agent, consultant or
representative of, or any person or entity that
provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to, or any supplier of
goods or services to, or any customer of, any
member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
of the Company or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)

3.

54

Total number of shares available for issue

The initial total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of approval of the 2011
Share Option Scheme (i.e. 341,534,635 shares after the
adjustment for the effect of Share Subdivision in June
2015). As at 30 April 2016, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
(save for those granted but not yet exercised) is
291,534,635, representing approximately 8.25% of the
Company'’s issued share capital as at the date of this
annual report.

Subject to the approval by the Company’s shareholders,
the aggregate number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 30% of the Company's
shares in issue from time to time. Options granted to the
independent non-executive Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s shares in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million resulting in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and
to be granted to such person under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant of such option must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders.

Maximum entitlement for each eligible person
The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any eligible persons (including those
cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in any
12-month period up to the date of the latest grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Company'’s shares in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of such limit must be separately
approved by the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)

5.

Time of exercise of option

Options may be exercised at any time commencing on
the date as the Board may determine and ending on such
date as the Board may determine but shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

Minimum holding period of the option before it
can be exercised

The 2011 Share Option Scheme does not specify any
minimum holding period but the Board has the authority
to determine the minimum period for which a share
option in respect of some or all of the shares forming the
subject of the share options must be held before it can be
exercised.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

Offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.
No consideration is required to be paid by the grantee of
an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for
the grant of an option.

Exercise Price

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of offer of grant and the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of grant.

Remaining life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme
Subject to the earlier termination of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme in accordance with the rules governing
the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the 2011 Share Option
Scheme will expire on 29 August 2021.
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Share options and share option scheme (continued)
Movements of the options to subscribe for shares of the
Company granted to the consultants under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme during the year under review were as follows:

BRERBERETS @
RABBFEARE -_T——FHBRETERT
BRARBARBRD ZBREZLSERMT

|1 __________________________________________________________________|
Options granted by the Company
Number of underlying shares of the Company

FRARE BREREZALARGEAE

Outstanding Outstanding ~ Subscription
as at asat price per Date of Exercise
1 May 2015 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2016 share grant period
(HK9)
R=%-1% RZ2-R%
nA-A MA=1A i
i RAT BRI B B BAM  HAGE THE  RA4REM  TEER
(B1)
! _______________________________________________________________________________________________|
Consultants EAf 06/11/2015-
(the "Grantees") B:5:9N)) - 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000 100%  06/11/2015  05/11/2018*
Total At - 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000

The Share Options may only be exercised by the Grantees during the
exercise period if the average closing price of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange stated in its daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediate preceding the exercise date exceeds HK$2 per
share of the Company.

Notes:
(i) The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock

Exchange's daily quotations sheet immediately before the date on which
the outstanding options were granted were as follows:

REZHATERBRER D A BEIREHRZS
HSERAT  AARERODZEHENT

Date of grant
Rt A

Closing price per share

06/11/2015

No options under the 2011 Share Option Scheme were exercised,
cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 30 April 2016.

(if) The Company has used the Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair
value of options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The Black-
Scholes Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair
value of an option which can be exercised before the expiry of the option
period. The assumptions used in the calculation are:

(a) Risk-free interest rate — the yield of 3-year Exchange Fund Note on
the date of grant

(b) Expected volatility of share price — 34.94%
() Expected life of share options — 3 years
(d) Expected dividend payout rate — 40%

The amount charged to in the statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 30 April 2016 was approximately US$141,000 (2015: Nil)

The fair value of options granted during the year under review using the
Black-Scholes Model was approximately US$847,000 (2015: Nil)

The calculation of the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes Model
is based on various assumptions and is only an estimate. It is possible that
the financial benefit accruing to the option holders may be substantially
different from the value of options calculated.
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Directors
The Directors during the year under review and up to the date
of this report were:

Non-executive Director
ZHOU Xijian

Executive Directors

ZHANG Qi

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil

ZHANG Li (appointed with effect from 8 April 2016 and
resigned with effect from 12 July 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
WONG Chak Keung
(appointed with effect from 1 November 2015)
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS
(ceased to be a director with effect from 5 May 2016)

The Company and Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS
reached a consensus that the term under the then existing letter
of appointment of Mr. Tulleners would not be renewed upon its
expiration. Accordingly, with effect from 5 May 2016, Mr.
Tulleners ceased to be an independent non-executive Director
of the Company.

Furthermore, Mr. ZHANG Li was appointed as an executive
Director and the co-chairman of the Board with effect from 8
April 2016. He resigned with effect from 12 July 2016 from such
positions due to his decision to devote more time to his other
commitments.

Mr. WONG Chak Keung being a newly appointed Director on
the aforesaid date, will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis and Mr. HWANG Han-Lung, Basil,
in accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws, will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Permitted indemnity provision

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties in his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers' liability insurance
for the Directors and officers of the Group.

Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations

As at 30 April 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

58 Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2016

EERBEL
BREERRAF A LBEREE EEHER
AEEREMARE AR —FRNERE CX
TERRERRSN MAR L Z BRI A K o

BEERE

RIFQBMAA  AARBREFHEMESRBE
VB REFL RN A TRRS St B B T AT REFR B 3K
EXNABEEBERXABEEBARREERSRE -
ARRERAGEEERRABBELHEENE
EhERBERETRR

EERNARAREEBER 2R - 8
ERORESTz2ES

RIE—RFEA=1H  ARBZEZRITH
BENA R R SETMARAE (EXEEBED
ESNEFHFMPEGE ((EHRBER S
XVER) 2 By ~ #aBE R MEF R BB AL AR
NREMRERESF LG GRIIFEIGEFE 2 &M
ZHEmIRR  R(NFE) RBFETRANE
AR R P2 i FORRIAE ¢



Report of the Directors
EEEWREE

Directors' interests in shares, underlying sharesand EZERAQATREMRE LB ZKRH - B
debentures of the Company and its associated BIRGRES P Z#EZE )

corporations (continued)

(@) Interests and short positions in the shares of the (a) RAEQATRRHEMEBZIEZRMAP 2ER

Company and its associated corporations ERE

! | _____________________! _________________|
Percentage

shareholding in the
same class of

Number and class securities as at

Name of Directors Capacity of securities 30 April 2016
(Note 1)

R-ZE—RHF

mMA=+H

ERERIF 25

EEnA 514 HEHAE RER ZREBDLL
(B&ET)

The Company

b /N

ZHOU Xijian Interest of controlled 2,213,738,095 62.68%
BE#FE corporations (Note 2) ordinary shares
REHIEE 2 s (HRE2) LEAR
L

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis Beneficial owner 12,500,000 0.35%
BEF E=AA ordinary shares
()

WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 1,300,000 0.04%
F & EmEAA ordinary shares
()

ZHANG Li (Note 3) Interest of spouse (Note 3) 4,309,131 0.12%
R (P EE3) B4 2 s (M5 3) ordinary shares
LEAR

L

Associated corporation — Daohe Global Investment Holding Limited (“Daohe Global Investment”) (Note 2)

HEEE — BEMNRREEZRAER AT ((EMRRERE D (EE2)

ZHOU Xijian Beneficial owner 8,000 80%
B EmlaAA ordinary shares
EBRX
(L)

ZHANG Qi Beneficial owner 2,000 20%
SR Enlia A ordinary shares

L
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Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (continued)

(@) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations
(continued)

Notes:

(1) The letter “L" represents the Director’s long position in the shares

2 As at 30 April 2016, (i) Sino Remittance Holding Limited owned
1,707,500,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
48.34% of the issued share capital of the Company; (i) Fame City
Developments Limited owned 198,968,455 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 5.63% of the issued share capital of the
Company; (i) Oceanic Force Limited owned 306,809,640 shares of
the Company, representing approximately 8.69% of the issued
share capital of the Company; and (iv) Winning Port International
Limited owned 460,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 0.01% of the issued share capital of the Company.
By virtue of the relationship between Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Daohe
Global Investment as stated in Note (2) to the paragraph headed
“Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company” below, Mr. ZHOU
Xijian was deemed, by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the
SFO, to be interested in the shares of the Company in which Daohe
Global Investment, Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City
Developments Limited, Oceanic Force Limited and Winning Port
International Limited were interested.

(3) The shares of the Company were owned by &[T Bl 51 & E 12
AR A 7] (Shenzhen Guocai Lixin Investment Management Company
Limited*) (“Guocai Lixin"), a company which is 70%-owned by the
spouse of Mr. ZHANG Li. Mr. ZHANG Li was deemed, by virtue of
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in the shares of
the Company in which Guocai Lixin was interested.

Mr. ZHANG Li resigned as executive Director and co-chairman of
the Board with effect from 12 July 2016.

(b) Interests and short positions in the underlying
shares of the Company and its associated
corporations
As at 30 April 2016, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had interests or short positions
in the underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(c) Interests and short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2016, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had interests or short positions
in the debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under
review was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company (including their spouses
and children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company

As at 30 April 2016, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are set out above) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:
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Name of substantial shareholders  Capacity

EERREW g

Approximate
percentage of
interests as at

Number of
shares of the

Beneficial owner

BEmEa A

Sino Remittance Holding Limited
FEEZERBR AR

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Fame City Developments Limited

Beneficial owner

BEma A

Oceanic Force Limited

Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 2)

Daohe Global Investment
BRIRIKIEE

SR HDAE 2 s (M 2)

Company held 30 April 2016
(Note 1)

R-Z—XF

mA=t+tRAZ

BEXRRARHEE EEHNEIT
(FaED)

1,707,500,000 (L) 48.34%

198,968,455 (L) 5.63%

306,809,640 (L) 8.69%

2,213,738,095 (L) 62.68%
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Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company (continued)

Notes:
M The letter “L" represents the entity’s long position in the shares.

2 As at 30 April 2016, (i) Sino Remittance Holding Limited owned
1,707,500,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately 48.34%
of the issued share capital of the Company; (i) Fame City Developments
Limited owned 198,968,455 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 5.63% of the issued share capital of the Company; (iii)
Oceanic Force Limited owned 306,809,640 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 8.69% of the issued share capital of the
Company; and (iv) Winning Port International Limited owned 460,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.01% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Each of Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments
Limited, Oceanic Force Limited and Winning Port International Limited is
wholly-owned by Daohe Global Investment, which is in turn 80%-owned by
Mr. ZHOU Xijian and 20%-owned by Mr. ZHANG Qi. Mr. ZHOU Xijian and
Mr. ZHANG Qi, the Directors of the Company, are also the directors of
Sino Remittance Holding Limited, Fame City Developments Limited,
Oceanic Force Limited, Winning Port International Limited and Daohe
Global Investment. As such, Daohe Global Investment was deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company in which Sino Remittance Holding
Limited, Fame City Developments Limited, Oceanic Force Limited and
Winning Port International Limited were interested by virtue of the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2016, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
during the year under review are disclosed in Note 30 to the
financial statements. Save as disclosed below, these related
party transactions either (i) do not constitute connected or
continuing connected transactions or (i) fall under the definition
of a connected or continuing connected transaction, but are
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected transactions

The following transactions between certain connected persons
(as defined under Rule 14A.06(7) of the Listing Rules) and the
Company's subsidiaries constitute a continuing connected
transaction and a connected transaction respectively under the
Listing Rules and are subject to the announcement, reporting
and annual review requirements but are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions have been
entered into, and for the continuing connected transaction, is
ongoing, for which relevant announcements had been made by
the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Continuing connected transaction relating to Tamarind
International Limited

On 29 September 2015, Tamarind International Limited
(“Tamarind”) (for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from
time to time (together with Tamarind are collectively referred to
as "Tamarind Group”)) entered into a master lease agreement
("New Lease”) with Wellbuild International Limited (“"Wellbuild")
(for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time
(together with Wellbuild are collectively referred to as
“Wellbuild Group”)) in respect of the renewal of the existing
master lease agreement entered into between Tamarind as
tenant and Wellbuild as landlord on 31 March 2015 (“Existing
Lease”). Pursuant to the New Lease, Wellbuild Group agreed to
lease to Tamarind Group certain portions of a commercial
building in Shanghai, PRC (“Premises”) with gross floor area of
approximately 1,967 square metres by way of sub-letting
arrangement for a term of two years commencing from 1
October 2015 to 30 September 2017 (both dates inclusive). The
monthly rent (inclusive of management fee) payable by
Tamarind to Wellbuild under the New Lease is HK$330,000. The
Premises are used by Tamarind Group as its Shanghai office.
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Continuing connected transaction relating to Tamarind
International Limited (continued)

Wellbuild is (i) a wholly-owned subsidiary of Roly International
Ltd. (a company incorporated in Bermuda and a controlled
corporation of Mr. Wang Lu Yen ("Mr. Wang")), and (ii) a
controlled corporation and an associate of Mr. Wang. Mr. Wang
(a) was an executive Director and a director of its subsidiary,
Tamarind, who resigned on 23 February 2015 and 30 April 2015
respectively but continues to be regarded as a connected
person of the Company for 12 months after his ceasing to be an
executive Director and a director of its subsidiary, and (b) is a
director of Wellbuild. As Mr. Wang is a connected person of the
Company, Wellbuild and its subsidiaries were regarded as
connected persons of the Company at the time when Tamarind
entered into the New Lease with Wellbuild. Accordingly, the
New Lease constitutes a continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules.

The maximum aggregate annual value(s) to be received under
the New Lease (“Annual Caps”) in respect of the New Lease for
the relevant financial years ending 30 April 2018 are as follows.
The Annual Caps were calculated with reference to the
aggregate rental paid/payable by Tamarind Group to the
Wellbuild Group under the New Lease.

A B Tamarind International Limited 2 54&
BERS ()

ERENEZHBEBRIZERERAR (—KRBREF
MRz AR REREEE(TERED ZHZ
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M—E-RHEMA=1tHEHORIBERTEERZ
MBARZES ERERIEETRITEERZ
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Year ended 30 April 2016
BE-Z—"FNA=+HLEFE

Year ending 30 April 2017
BE_Z—tFNA=1TALEE BE_FT-/\FNA=1THLFE

Year ending 30 April 2018

HK$2,310,000 (being 7 months'’
rental from 1 October 2015 to

30 April 2016) (Note) 30 April 2017)

2,310,000 8T (BN ZE—RF+H—H 3,960,000 7T (Bl ZZ—R4F
ER—REZZ—tFWA=+H

E-T-REFNA=THZLMEA
Ae) (M)

Note:

ZT=EAMEE)

Under the Existing Lease, the annual aggregate rental paid/payable for the period
from 1 May 2015 to 30 September 2015 (being 5 months’ rental) amounts to
HK$1,650,000 (equivalent to US$212,000).

According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, the New Lease is required to be
aggregated with the Existing Lease for the purpose of determining the
classification of the connected transaction.

Thus, under the Existing Lease and the New Lease, the annual aggregate rental
paid/payable for the whole of the year ended 30 April 2016 amounts to
HK$3,960,000 (equivalent to US$509,000).
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Continuing connected transaction relating to Tamarind
International Limited (continued)

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that (a) the New Lease has been entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
(b) the New Lease were entered into on and the Annual Caps
represent rental amounts that are normal commercial terms
pursuant to arm'’s length negotiations between the parties, and
(c) the terms of the New Lease together with the Annual Caps
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.

The above continuing connected transaction was reviewed by
the independent non-executive Directors at the meeting of the
Audit Committee held on 11 July 2016. The independent non-
executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction was entered into (a) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (c) according to the agreement governing
it on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain fact
finding procedures on the above continuing connected
transaction on a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)”Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The Board
confirmed that it had received a letter from the auditors of the
Company confirming that nothing has come to the auditors’
attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transaction:

(1) has not been approved by the Board;

(2)  was not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company if the transaction involves
the provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) was not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the agreement governing the transaction;
and
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Continuing connected transaction relating to Tamarind

International Limited (continued)

(4)  has exceeded the aforesaid maximum aggregate annual
value as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
29 September 2015.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the transaction stated above. A copy
of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Connected transaction relating to acquisition of Hong
Kong Wing Yue Asset Management Limited

On 2 December 2015, Daohe Capital Limited (“Daohe
Capital”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding with
Hong Kong Wing Yue Financial Group Holdings Limited
(“"Vendor”), in relation to the possible acquisition of the entire
issued shares of Hong Kong Wing Yue Asset Management
Limited ("Target”) (“Acquisition”).

On 22 January 2016, Daohe Capital entered into an agreement
in relation to the Acquisition (“Agreement”) with the Vendor,
pursuant to which Daohe Capital conditionally agreed to
purchase and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire
issued shares of the Target at an aggregate consideration of
HK$14.5 million plus the net assets value of the Target as at
completion of the Acquisition, or the latest practicable date
prior to completion of the Acquisition that Daohe Capital and
the Vendor may agree, provided that if such value exceeds
HK$3 million, such net assets value, for the purpose of the
Agreement (and determination of the consideration for the
Acquisition), shall be deemed to be HK$3 million.

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, a non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company, is the
sole shareholder and sole director of the Vendor. The Vendor is
therefore an associate of Mr. Zhou and a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The Acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected transaction relating to acquisition of Hong
Kong Wing Yue Asset Management Limited (continued)
As at the date of this annual report, approval has yet to be
granted by the Securities and Futures Commission of Daohe
Capital becoming a substantial shareholder of the Target
Company, being one of the conditions precedent of the
completion of the Acquisition.

Details of the Acquisition were disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 2 December 2015 and 22 January 2016.

Directors’ interests in transaction, arrangement
or contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 30 to the financial
statements, no transaction, arrangement or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or his
connected entity was materially interested, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year under review.

Management contracts
Save for the employment contracts, no other contracts relating
to the management and/or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered
into or existed during the year.

Major customers and vendors of the Group

During the year under review, the five largest customers of the
Group in aggregate accounted for approximately 81.2% of the
revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services of the
Group and the largest customer accounted for approximately
36.4% of the revenue from sales of goods and rendering of
services of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted
for approximately 28.9% of the Group's total shipment volume
placed by the Group and the largest vendor accounted for
approximately 9.0% of the Group's total shipment value placed
by the Group.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in the top five customers or vendors
noted above.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRESE

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s shares during the year
under review.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 164
and 165.

Charitable donation
During the year under review, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to approximately US$8,000.

Corporate governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 23 to 47.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year under

review.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the
Company to hold office until conclusion of the next annual
general meeting at a fee to be agreed with the Directors.
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Events after the reporting period

Proposed placing of new shares under general
mandate and the lapse of the placing agreement

On 5 June 2016, the Company entered into the placing
agreement (“Placing Agreement”) with the placing agent
whereby the Company conditionally agreed to place, through
the placing agent, on a best effort basis, 690,620,000 new shares
of the Company to not less than six independent placees at the
placing price of HK$0.42 per placing share pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement.

The Company announced on 4 July 2016 that the Placing
Agreement lapsed as the conditions of the placing had not been
fulfilled on or before 4 July 2016. As such, the Placing
Agreement was terminated and the placing would not proceed
and all rights, obligations and liabilities of the parties under the
Placing Agreement in relation to the placing should forthwith
cease and determine and none of the parties should have any
claim against the other party in respect of the placing save for
any antecedent breaches.

The Directors are of the view that the lapse of the Placing
Agreement has no material adverse impact on the business
operation and financial position of the Group.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 5 June 2016 and 4 July 2016.

Acquisition of a money lender

On 18 May 2016, Dache Capital Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement for the
sale and purchase to acquire the entire issued share of Tingo
Consulting Company Limited (“Tingo”) and a shareholder’s
loan at a consideration of HK$420,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$54,000). Tingo is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong on 23 November 2015 with limited liability and is a
holder of a Money Lenders Licence issued under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
Such acquisition was completed on 19 May 2016.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRESE

Events after the reporting period (continued)
Acquisition of a company established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC")

On 29 June 2016, FYIBERHE AR A F] (Shenzhen Sheng Yun
Technology Co. Ltd.*) (“Sheng Yun”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity acquisition agreement with &=
E2 (Huang Yunxing*) and ERH1E (Ge Mingde*), pursuant to
which Sheng Yun agreed to acquire (i) a 30.6% equity interest in
FINE Z EF IR A B HEERE AR A F (Shenzhen Guo Zhi
Dao New Energy Vehicle Sales Services Co. Ltd.*) ("Guo Zhi
Dao”) from &£ (Huang Yunxing*) at a consideration of
RMBO.6; and (i) a 20.4% equity interest in Guo Zhi Dao from &
FHfZ (Ge Mingde*) at a consideration of RMBO0.4.

Guo Zhi Dao is a company incorporated in the PRC on 11 May
2016 with limited liability and has an unpaid registered capital
of RMB10 million. Its business scope includes sale of vehicles;
sale of renewable energy vehicles; leasing of vehicles; sale of
parts and power batteries of renewable energy vehicles; sale
and technological development of renewable energy vehicle
products and accessories, renewable energy electronic
products, renewable energy mechanical products and
equipment; domestic trading, import and export of goods and
technology.

The acquisition was completed on 7 July 2016. Upon completion
of the acquisition, the Company through Sheng Yun, indirectly

owned a 51% interest in Guo Zhi Dao.

As at the date of this annual report, Guo Zhi Dao has not

commenced any business.

On behalf of the Board

ZHOU Xijian
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong, 14 July 2016

*  For identification purpose only
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Independent Auditors’ Report

BY BT HREF

Ernst & Young Rk E TR B AT
22/F CITIC Tower BEBHIR

1 Tim Mei Avenue INEBTHR

Central, Hong Kong RERE22E

EY =x

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the shareholders of Daohe Global Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daohe
Global Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 73 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 April 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Tel : +852 2846 9888
Fax : +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

% :+852 2846 9888
fEH :+852 2868 4432
www.ey.com
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BY 2R ES

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 30 April 2016, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14 July 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Year ended 30 April 2016
BE_Z—NFNA=1+HILFE

2016 2015
—B-A"F —FT-AOF
Note US$'000 US$'000
{hE=a FEx FET
Y I D D
REVENUE & 5 94,053 97,872
Cost of sales $HEE Al N (71,024) (72,879)
Gross profit EF 23,029 24,993
Other income Ealg A 5 653 984
General and administrative expenses —RRMITH R (22,285) (23,292)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREERE 13 (887) -
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries BN B R A 2 518 27 (5) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR R 6 505 2,685
Income tax expense FifSfiFAx 9 (1,118) (1,009)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE (F8),&57 (613) 1,676
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: TH AL :
Owners of the Company RARHEEA (560) 1,676
Non-controlling interests e (33) -
(613) 1,676
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE AAREBERERITEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY EEER (EB8) &F
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (LAZELZ31)
(expressed in US cents) 10
Basic (Note) AR (KaE) (0.02) 0.05
Diluted (Note) B5E (fat) (0.02) 0.05
Note: Htat -
Adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015. ER—ZE-AFANANROMIFANTZBIEHTE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= A 3¢
e %ﬁq&ﬁﬁ%:?
Year ended 30 April 2016
HE_Z-—RFUA=THIEFE

2016 2015
—E-XF —T-hF
Note US$'000 US$'000
BiaE FErx FET
| ] | | |
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE(FR) R (613) 1,676
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HpZEUBA
Other comprehensive income to be HEgsHoEEER
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: Em2mmlA
Fair value gain on an available-for-sale —IEAHLESREE L
financial asset N FEW R 14 109 -
Exchange differences: HE 54, 258
Translation of foreign operations BEBINET 80 33
Reclassification adjustment B OEAE
— loss on dissolution of subsidiaries -REM B AR Z
18 27 5 —
Other comprehensive income to be HpBsHoEEBn2
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss Eth 2 EA 194 33
Other comprehensive loss not to be HE @B BEEAR
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: Efb2mEE :
Remeasurements from defined benefit plan  FiERAEI 2 EEHAE  22() (51) (34)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) ®EHftZEUW A~ (FE)
FOR THE YEAR 143 (1)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME S E2@E (Ei8) WA # 5
FOR THE YEAR (470) 1,675
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THIAL G :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ 2= DN (417) 1,675
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (53) =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME S E2HE (&i8) WA &5
FOR THE YEAR (470) 1,675
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e TR 2R
As at 30 April 2016
R-Z—ARFOA=+H

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E-hE
Note US$’'000 Us$'000
B 5T FEnx FET
| | | | |
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HE M ERE 12 416 334
Goodwill RS 13 26,857 26,333
Available-for-sale financial asset At ESRIEE 14 229 84
Investment in a joint venture R—RELRRIZKE 15 10 10
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 16 10 12
Total non-current assets ERENEEARER 27,522 26,773
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables JEWE 5 Rk 17 4,392 4,236
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - 'ER
other receivables H b e Ui B 18 3,010 3,305
Cash and cash equivalents Re RIS EEIER 19 24,956 17,044
Total current assets MBEERT 32,358 24,585
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FEN B B ERR 20 5,100 4,762
Accruals and other payables e B A R B Ath 5 R 21 10,936 11,164
Tax payable eI TE 2,388 2,035
Total current liabilities mENEERRE 18,424 17,961
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 13,934 6,624
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#ZERABAS 41,456 33,397
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Post-employment benefits & B R KAE T 22 512 809
Total non-current liabilities BB EESE 512 809
NET ASSETS EEFE 40,944 32,588
EQUITY s
Share capital R& 2R 23 14,128 13,694
Reserves EE 25 26,890 18,894
Equity attributable to owners RABMER A
of the Company FEfGHERS 41,018 32,588
Non-controlling interests IR (74) =
TOTAL EQUITY R 40,944 32,588
ZHANG Qi R¥& WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEF
Director &% Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

] \ /.
Z N \ n\l:ln\
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Year ended 30 April 2016
HE_Z-—RFUA=THIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATRE AR
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share Capital asset Exchange Non-
Share Share  option  Special redemption revaluation fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve reserve’  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests equity
e
R BRE BE EAEE SREE EXRE #E FER i
B& BE e ffk i EfREE ffe &7 @t i ot
Note  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
i3 TEn FEr  TEr  TEr TEr FER TEn FER FEn FER TER
/! | | ______________________________________________________________________________|
At 1 May 2015 RZZ-RFRA-H 13694 10,063 - 184 48 - (95) 8,694 32,588 - 32,588
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - - - (560) (560) (53) (613)
Other comprehensive FEAMZE
income/(loss) for the year: WA/ (B8) :
Fair value gain on an —RAfHE
available-for-sale SREE
financial asset LG 14 - - - - - 109 - - 109 - 109
Exchange difference on BEENEBL
translation of foreign operations B E% - - - - - - 80 - 80 - 80
Reclassification adjustment BIARAR
- loss on dissolution of - FHHBAR
subsidiaries B - - - - - - 5 - 5 - 5
Remeasurements from defined ~ FEEREAEEZ
benefit plan EifitE - - - - - - - (51) (51) - (51)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  EE 27 (518) /A
for the year ks - - - - - 109 85 (611) (417) (53) (470)
Issue of ordinary shares BLER 3 400 7,852 - - - - - - 8,252 - 8,252
Share issue expenses RABTHES - (18) - - - - - - (18) - (18)
Acquisition of a subsidiary E-FHEAR 23 34 1,345 - - - - - - 1379 @1 1,358
Equity-settled share option IARRAE S A 2 BB
arrangement ZH - - 141 - - - - - 141 - 141
Final 2015 dividend paid BEN=Z-1%F
RER S i - - - - - - - (226) (226) - (226)
Interim 2016 dividend paid BNZE—E
PHRE i - - - - - - - (681) (681) - (681)
At 30 April 2016 R-F-—R%F
mA=+H 14128 19,242 141 184 48 109 (10) 7176 41,018 (74) 40,944
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZT—

GARKBEE

Year ended 30 April 2016

Attributable to owners of the Company

NEMA=THIEFE

AYNGIE PN
Share Capital  Exchange
Share Share option Special redemption fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve’ reserve reserve  earnings equity
Ry BbE Bhl AARE  EXRKE R& i 5
B i R it B s 2 &8
Note  US§000  USF000  US$000  US$'000  USH000  USH000  US§'000  US$000
A e o A e e O
| | | ________________________________________________________________|
At1May 2014 RZZ-mERA-H 13,671 9,958 69 184 48 (128) 8915 32,717
Profit for the year ERRA - - - - = = 1676 1676
Other comprehensive FRAMPE
income/(loss) for the year: WA/ (B8
Exchange differences on BERINER
translation of foreign operations JEHES = = = = = 3 = 33
Remeasurements from TRREME
defined benefit plan ZEHE = = = = - - (34) (34)
Total comprehensive FEZERA
income for the year ke = = = = = 3 1,642 1,675
Employees share option scheme EEBRES
- proceed from issue of shares -BARHFETE 23 23 79 - - - - - 102
—transfer to share premium -BEARMEE 2% - 2 (26) = = = - -
Share options lapsed/cancelled FERBAH/FHH
during the year RN = = 43) = = = 43 =
Final 2014 dividend paid ENZT-MERERE - - - - - = (1,063) (1,063)
Interim 2015 dividend paid EffZS-RFTERE 11 = - - - - - (843) (843)
At 30 April 2015 RZZ-RFMA=1H 13,694 10,063 - 184 48 (95) 8,694 32,588

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of

share capital of the Company issued and the aggregate amount of nominal
value of share capital of subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an

exchange of shares.

#
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHESRER

Year ended 30 April 2016
HE_Z-—RFUA=THIEFE

2016 2015

—E—-XRE —ZE—HRHF

Note US$'000 US$'000
B st FEnr FET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& 2K >IHSHE

Profit before tax Rt A& A 505 2,685
Adjustments for: IRREE
Interest income MBWA 5 (14) 7)
Reversal of impairment of an —IEAHEEeREE
available-for-sale financial asset VERIEEAC] 5 (36) -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - WERRE
plant and equipment ZWEs 6 - ©)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries BB AR 2 EE 6 5 -
Depreciation e 6 319 273
Impairment loss on goodwill AR ERE 13 887 -
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE SR FORE 6 106 125
Equity-settled share option expenses ARRIE S 5 2 B Ak i B 6 141 -
1,913 3,073
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEWE SRR (38 ), B (262) 1,860
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEI IR « e REM
deposits and other receivables FEMGRIER A (38 h0) 295 (883)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTE S BRFRIE A, O 4) 338 (920)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals FERTE A & E A RS RIR
and other payables CRi), /18 (306) 1,489
Decrease in post-employment benefits & B8R IEHR D (343) (230)
Cash generated from operations REEGMFSES 1,635 4,389
Tax paid EAHIE (763) (47)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEB TSI R 872 4,342
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZEFIEREFAE
Interest received EFE 14 U
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE Y% - E L& E (407) (150)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BE LB
plant and equipment Fr1S 5038 2 S5
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —KMI B AR 26 24 =
Net cash flows used in investing activities KEEE TR & F (367) (138)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n/-_r\ EE%UILE%‘:Z

Year ended 30 April 2016
BE-Z - RFOA=THIFE

2016 2015
—RE —T—RF
US$’000 Us$'000
FER FET

! ! | |
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®BIEZREMESEESRE

Proceeds from issue of shares BATRRAD P15 30E 8,252 102
Share issue expenses AR 1D B TR (18) =
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ENAAREEAZRE (907) (1,9006)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities REEEEATE,(FTHE)IREFE 7,327 (1,804)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERESLEEER

CASH EQUIVALENTS B 7,832 2,400
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E%}]Zﬁ%&ﬁ%%fﬁlﬁ H 17,044 14,611
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EREH o wE - FH 80 33
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZEER

END OF YEAR ReEEER 24,956 17,044
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND ReRkFELEHEER

CASH EQUIVALENTS AR DT
Cash and bank balances RNE NIRRT 24,956 17,044
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS SRR M AT

30 April 2016
—E-RFEMA=+H

2.1

80

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Daohe Global Group Limited (“Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together with the
Company are collectively referred to as the "Group”) are
principally engaged in the sales of merchandise and the
provision of procurement and value-added services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The Company’s shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 10 May
2002. The Directors regard Sino Remittance Holding
Limited, which is incorporated in Seychelles, as the
holding company of the Company, and Dache Global
Investment Holding Limited, which is incorporated in
Seychelles, as the ultimate holding company of the
Company as at 30 April 2016.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for an available-for-sale financial
asset, which has been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars
("US$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2016
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 30 April 2016. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(o) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.1

2.2

82

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries below.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments
to the Listing Rules relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial year. The
main impact to the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the

financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 (Revised) between an Investor and its

Associate and Joint Venture*
Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying

IFRS 12 and IAS 28 the Consolidation Exception'
(Revised)
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
IFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations'
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts

with Customers?

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
IAS 16 and IAS 38 Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation'
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate

(Revised) Financial Statements'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number
2012-2014 Cycle of IFRSs!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is
not applicable to the Group

No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new
and revised IFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group's results of the operations and financial
position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
Joint venture
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control,
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of a joint venture is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's investment in the joint venture,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of joint venture is included as part of
the Group's investment in joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

86

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 30 April. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its available-for-sale financial asset
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

2.4 FESTTBERBE(

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E—X"FMA=+H

i3

DNFEFE
AEEREHRERRZ A HEFEEAIHRE
ELHEE - ATEREREAMS2EE
ZEAMEFX ST S EEEMBRIZE
RRERBBEAAN 2B - SHERTFER
SR EEEXBRERBZIRINEERE
ENEBMSR(ERBEEMENHERT)
RAMMGET - TEXRBANMHASN
KEEZ2ENTS - BRMSLEEENK
EREMNETE  BEXRENRFEER
miE2EELEENABEEEMBRETE -

FEMEEZ A TEMES ATH2EE
REERN&SEELREREIKEES
TRRESRERRERRZ S —E2ME2
HEMAIELEMEEES

AEESHARBRERTRGETE - #
FRBERABEFERATE  LEENBHERM
ABRGABE  ROERTABRREER -

BMRFREBBRAR g7

T NEER



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E—AFmMA=+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of 5 years
or the lease terms

Furniture and equipment 3 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include an available-for-sale
financial asset, cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and deposits and other receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

94

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments is reported as interest income and is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets, if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

96

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial asset

For available-for-sale financial asset, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in the fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

98

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables and
other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBEREE
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued) TRIEE &)

i3

Financial guarantee contracts A 7

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are AEEBET 2 MBEEREORIEERIEL R
those contracts that require a payment to be made to ERNRAERFE ARSEES ARERE
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the BT A ZIGREERHFRBEBMABEIERZ
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in BH - B EREHNRVIZAFEL L
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A ERZEEZEEERSEAMEAZRBRERASR
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a & - BAERE  AEEFUTIZE 28R
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that SEHMBREREOETAENRNBESH
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. AETRBEEEMFERXNKREREZ S
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the B MilEAERZeRE B(WER) &R
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the ST o

amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities BB s & ml B 15

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation B aEEMERGSTHESE R - BEUS
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. ERTcmasE-

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another HIRE SR B EREKER—EHETRIER
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the R ELRARER  IMEABZKER
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such WARIBIEE] » BB G /EBUEIER
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of RREBEVERTEE MSEASEREZ
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and ZRHAIRNBERRPHER

the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments KHEEmMIA

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the BIRITA R FRITZEEEFNAIKEER S
net amount is reported in the statement of financial BN AERFRHEAEEN B REERS
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to EAGERRET helEcmEENLESR
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to BEMRUBEHRARRNERFEE -

settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of merchandise, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

(b) commission income from procurement services,
when the underlying goods procured by the Group
are shipped;

(c)  from the rendering of services, reimbursement
income from customers, handling fee income and
inspection and laboratory testing income, when the
services are rendered; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including Directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
Black-Scholes Model, further details of which are given in
note 24 to the financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

()  Pension schemes
Defined contribution pension scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China and other overseas
countries are required to participate in the pension
scheme operated by the local municipal governments.
Contributions are made based on the requirements of
the respective local municipal government, the
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Pension schemes (continued)

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the scheme. The
cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined separately using the projected
unit credit valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
pension plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained profits
through other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at
the earlier of:

o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment;
and

o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Group recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation under “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs,
past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments

and non-routine settlements;

° net interest expense or income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Employee leave entitlements

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end of
the reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are

approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and

declared, because the Company’s memorandum and

association and bye-laws grant the Directors the authority

to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim

dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when

they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FTES:TBERBE

3

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and joint venture are currencies other than the United
States dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
United States dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into United States dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 30 April 2016 was US$26,857,000 (2015:
US$26,333,000). More details are given in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers
and other debtors and the current market condition which
requires the use of judgements and estimates. When the
expectation on the recoverability of trade and other
receivables is different from the original estimates, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade and other
receivables and impairment provisions in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed. Management
assesses the provision at the end of each reporting
period. The carrying amounts of trade receivables and
other receivables as at 30 April 2016 was US$4,392,000
(2015: US$4,236,000) and US$1,216,000 (2015: US$1,621,000),
respectively. More details are given in Notes 17 and 18 to
the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for tax and the
timing of payment of the related taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination is made. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets as at 30 April 2016 was US$10,000 (2015:
US$12,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more
likely than not) that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors
are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised,
such as the existence of taxable temporary differences,
tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated
tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets and related financial models and budgets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and to the
extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable profits will be available within the
utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses
carried forward, the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 ey D
30 April 2016
—E—X"FMA=+H

B3t

i)

ﬁ?ZTﬁE&

$§lhﬁﬁym7£%EZ% ST o INE
ERERERERTZNEBEHE  KERES
EHEZHE - THEEBBARTEZER
SRFTERN ST HRARETRR
TRIE - WZEEE L REMBERERYIL
BEBIAE FEEESeYESEETH
2 PTER MRIET IR EE - R—ZT— &
MA=+8 - ELHEQFZ%EER
10,000% 7T (ZZE—F4F : 12,0003 7T) °

EEHIAE EWER SRR B HIAER
2R R RN (ERAEEE) A (B
BAHBRE AR ) HIR 2 RRERDL A
MBABMARKB B 2 HIBAEE - EREE
WhARERECHREEREAREBX
ISR REIR 2 HHf - b TRIEE TR
EHE 2 NEBERERAFRRD 25&
B BRMDIMBEERAEES AR
Zﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁuu' PIanERIR E R =8 - HIs5at 8l
SREE M AT BIR B IR AR E) A 2 B - BT
WIREENERM BRI 2 FREERBEER
BREWPRT AT - ERBRRBERHEA
FHIRN 2 BE  BRBBHRBANE R AER
BaAl  BREETABRSUEEBR - BE
BRSO L E R RPN -

ﬂhﬁﬁlﬁ@Aquq

TR



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E—AFmMA=+H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

4.

mEIEER
REBMS  AREMZRERRRGEDHE
BEAL - YEUTRET2RZEEHHA -

(@) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion @) PEmEE(BEKK  KrHidt  EE
accessories, hardgoods and labels; and RiEZ) : &

(b) provision of services including procurement and
value-added services relating to the procurement
agency business.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before tax except that interest
income, reversal of impairment of an available-for-sale
financial asset, impairment loss on goodwill, loss on
dissolution of subsidiaries as well as corporate and other
unallocated expense are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RKR&o4¥&ER (@)

(continued)

Sales of Provision of

merchandise services Total
BmiiE RUERY =
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTER TER TEx
I Y . I
Year ended 30 April 2016 BE-Z—XE
MA=tRHLEFE
Segment revenue: PEWRE
Revenue from external customers REINARP 2 W 81,038 13,015 94,053
Segment results THEES 2,480 505 2,985
Interest income FEWA 14
Reversal of impairment of an —EARHEEREE
available-for-sale financial asset R EREE 36
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREREE (887)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries BRENI B A Bl 2 E51E (5)
Corporate and other unallocated EREMAKS AR
expenses Fix (1,638)
Profit before tax B %5 AL g A 505
Income tax expense P BRI (1,118)
Loss for the year FEERE (613)
Other segment information: HitpEEH :
Depreciation e 129 190 319
Capital expenditures BERRAX 166 241 407
Impairment of trade receivables EWE SEREFORE 17 89 106
Year ended 30 April 2015 HE-_T—RF
MA=+HILFE
Segment revenue: PEWRE
Revenue from external customers REINARP 2 W 83,002 14,870 97,872
Segment results TEES 1,993 1,222 3,215
Interest income FEWA 7
Corporate and other unallocated EREMERDE
expenses 53 (537)
Profit before tax PR AL A 2,685
Income tax expense PSR (1,009)
Profit for the year FERF 1,676
Other segment information: Hitp BEH -
Depreciation e 142 131 273
Capital expenditures BARFX 42 108 150
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 ERFURE - 125 125
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &&59¥EER @)

(continued)
Geographical information b 35 B B
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REINIREFZWa
| | | |
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
USs$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
| | | |
Australia SEM 35,356 35,002
North America LM 23,338 19,240
Africa FEM 22,821 24,703
Europe &M 6,625 12,270
Others Hith 5,913 6,657
94,053 97,872
The revenue information above is based on the S ER TIRIE R AT 25 o

(b)

locations of the customers.

Non-current assets (b) FEREEE
| | | |
2016 2015
S o
US$'000 US$'000
Fxr TET
| | | |
Hong Kong EE 26,627 26,555
Others HAh 656 122
27,283 26,677
The non-current assets information above is based L IE R EEE R RIS & EIE
on the locations of assets and excludes an available- WE2 > TABFE—EBaHEESH
for-sale financial asset and deferred tax assets. BERBEERIBEE -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. R&ZE5EER®
(continued)
Information about major customers EBEEEFZEH

KEXTBREF (BRREREPHAKE KR
10% 3 0A £) 2 Wz k5 an T

Revenue from major customers, which individually
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue, is set
out below:

Operating segment 2016 2015
REDHE —E-XF —ZE-hF
US$'000 US$'000
FER F=ET
I I I
Customer A Sales of merchandise 34,270 33,532
EFA A
Customer B Sales of merchandise 22,821 24,703
%P B 2 an 5 &
Customer C Sales of merchandise 15,336 -
EPC 2 an 5 &
72,427 58,235
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. KWaERkEMEBA
Group's revenue represents the net invoiced value of AEEZWEDEEHERRRERE ST
goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade MNEZEZFE  BEBRARRERER 2B

(=1

discounts; commission income and the value of services
rendered.

REEE 2z Was MEMBAZDHTEAT

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as
follows:

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hHF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
I T Y
Revenue &=
Sales of merchandise EmiHE 81,038 83,002
Commission income =N 13,010 14,862
Rendering of services RS 5 8
94,053 97,872
Other income Hg A
Bank interest income RITFEUA 14 7
Reimbursement income from customers K B & F 8{E YA 4 1
Handling fee income FEBRA 197 333
Inspecting and laboratory test income  #&5& & B & = AI 5 U A 95 128
Reversal of impairment of an —FAfEEeREEL
available-for-sale financial asset JRE R 36 —
Others HAh 307 505
653 984
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FRBLATZEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REB 2 GRADEF TR (GEA) AT
(crediting): £I7 -
| | | | |
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—hF
Note US$'000 US$'000
5T FEx FET
1 [ | I —
Cost of inventories sold EEFEZKA 70,699 72,271
Cost of services provided EIRRHERG Z KAR 325 608
Depreciation e 12 319 273
Minimum lease payments under wEHE THEES
operating leases: R
Furniture and equipment NS E T 97 91
Office premises and staff quarters MAEEURETES 2,060 1,977
2,157 2,068
Auditors’ remuneration* ZEAT BN & *
Audit services Bz 292 318
Non-audit services B ZARES 20 107
312 425
Employee benefit expense EERAIMXS
(including Directors’ (BIEESEH -
remuneration — Note 7): MIzE7)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e A AW =3: 1 12,830 13,481
Staff welfare and benefits B TEH &gt 1,612 1,651
Pension scheme contributions” RIR@ TR
— defined contribution scheme — ERARRETE 546 519
— defined benefit plans - EFEEAETE 22 25 27
15,013 15,678
Equity-settled share option expense VAR #E S 15 2 B A% & A 141 -
Foreign exchange differences, net [ i, Z 48 )% 48 138 296
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 13 887 -
Impairment of trade receivables U E 58k FURIE 17 106 125
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BE KK
plant and equipment Al &S - Q)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries  fZERT/E A 7 2 E518 27 5 -

& Of the above audit and non-audit services fees, US$283,000 (2015:
US$309,000) and US$20,000 (2015: US$107,000) respectively are

payable to the Company'’s auditors.

A At 30 April 2016, the Group had no material forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in

future years (2015: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. EEFHFMH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant AELREEMRE - FAERFUEH (5622
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the F)E383(N@) ) X ERAR(FEE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Part 2 EEMEERBAOE 2 ATHRBRECES
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about e ¢

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2016 2015

—E-AF i

USs$'000 US$'000

Group AEME FEx FETT
I T D

Fees we 201 177

Other emoluments: Hi & -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBIREDFER 1,034 1,229

Pension scheme contributions EIREEHEIE R 103 81

1,137 1,310

Total #aEt 1,338 1,487
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEHM@w
The emoluments of each Director are set out below: BEZEZ MEEY 0T :
I Y Y . Y Y
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus contributions remuneration
e RBER RESH  BHRETE
ne EYFIz A R B
BE-Z-X% UsS$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
Year ended 30 April 2016 WA=+ HIEE TER TER TER TER TER
| | | | | | |
Executive Directors: HITES !
ZHANG Qi RE - 46 - 5 51
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis =EF - 558 - 56 614
HWANG Han-Lung, Basil BERE - 420 - 42 462
ZHANG Li (i) EF ) - 10 - - 10

Non-executive Director: FHITES
ZHOU Xijan Bif 46 _ B} § 46

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

Directors:
WANG Arthur Minshiang Eaigsd 44 - - - 44
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HEDT 55 - - - 55
WONG Chak Keung (i) 25 (i) 19 - - - 19
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert

TULLENERS (jii) TULLENERS (iii) 37 - - - 37

201 1,034 - 103 1,338
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
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e

7. EEHMN @

Fees
BEZZ—1F US$'000
Year ended 30 April 2015 HA=+RHILEE T=En

Salaries,

allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonus  contributions  remuneration

58 2R FRAM  RAREHE
NN E= TE4T K mEm
US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
T=x T T=x TET

Executive Directors: HITES:
ZHANG Qi (iv) R (iv) = 11 = 1 12
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF - 465 - 47 512
HWANG Han-Lung, Basil (iv) ~ ZZ# (iv) = 100 = 10 110
WANG Lu Yen (v) FiE W) = 653 = 23 676
Non-executive Directors: FHTES !
ZHOU Xijian (iv) B iv) 11 = = = 1
WONG Wai Ming (vi) 1R (vi) 30 - - - 30
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
Directors:
WANG Arthur Minshiang Eaigsd 44 - - - 44
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius FHEDT 55 - - - 55
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS TULLENERS 37 - - - 37
177 1,229 - 81 1,487
Notes: BisE -

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Appointed on 8 April 2016 and resigned on 12 July 2016. The
amount above includes only his remuneration during his tenure as
Director.

Appointed on 1 November 2015. The amount above includes only
his remuneration during his tenure as Director.

Ceased to act as a Director on 5 May 2016. The amount above
includes only his remuneration during his tenure as Director.

Appointed on 5 February 2015. The amounts above include only
their remuneration during their tenure as Directors.

Resigned as executive Director and appointed as honorary
chairman (non-executive and not a member of the Board) on 23
February 2015. The amount above includes only his remuneration
during his tenure as Director.

Resigned on 23 February 2015. The amount above includes only his
remuneration during his tenure as Director.

0] KRB RFNANBERE  YR=_F—RF
tHA+—HEEE . LRSBERRRNESE
HANEFBN o

(i) R-E-—AFE+— A BEZE LASHEES
FERNESEHANEH -

R-B-—RFAAABTHEFES - L@
ERERNESEHNZ -

(iii)

R-Z-—AF_FAABRERE - LeBEERRE
BHERE TR -

(iv)

v R-B-AF-_A-t-HEERTESTER
EREBEFECGEATRIFESTENE) - i
HECRBRRNESTHANZH -

WRZE-—RAF_A-+=HEHME - LS ER
FBRNESERAOHH -

(vi)
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2015: Nil).

During the year ended 30 April 2016, no emolument was
paid to or received by any of the Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office as a director of any
member of the Group or of any other office in connection
with the management of the Group (2015: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2015: two) Directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 7 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining three (2015: three) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

EEHMN =
ERNHESEHERRASHRETAMEHE
B(ZE—RF : &)

REBE-FT—R"EFUA=THLFE  ¥TE
AEMNEEXNREMNHSIEASEMBERR
B E B 2 BE) - HIERAREE K
BRAAZESHAMAEEEEE ZEFH
OB 2 BB E (— T —01F - |) -

AfvGRESHHNES
FREUESHFHEEREMU(ZT—A
FoML)ES  EHFMFBEN EXME
7o FERN HBAZM(ZT—RHF : =) ¥
ARBEFSTRAE L ZDFHMER 25
BT -

2016 2015
—E-AF —F—h%
USs$'000 Us$'000
FEnx FET

- | /| |
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #& -~ B R EWFIZS 791 786
Performance related bonuses FIRHMATEAT 45 30
Pension scheme contributions RIS FT AR 9 9
845 825
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 8. ﬁuam%ﬁwéa )

The number of non-Director and non chief executive %ﬁ@ﬂﬁ']#%%&#ﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁb{/%n
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the EEJZ%&@}HE ATHEHEHASDT :
following bands presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") is

as follows:

| | | |
Number of employees

EEAH
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —ET—RF
| | | |
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T 2 1,500,000 7 7T
(equivalent to US$128,535 to (FHZ 128,535 7T
US$192,801) £192,801%7T) - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /7L & 2,000,000 % 7T
(equivalent to US$192,802 to (A1 192,802% T
US$257,069) % 257,069%7T) - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 /& 7T 2 3,000,000 7T
(equivalent to US$257,070 to (FZ R 257,070 7T
US$385,604) 385,604 7T) 3 3
3
During the year ended 30 April 2016, no emolument was HEZZ-—R"FONA=THILEFE  #ER
paid to or received by any of the five highest paid EAI R # lE 8 X e R K S HEE
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the & (e QMBS N B R E B 2 228 -
Group or as compensation for loss of office in connection HERBREAREEHE RN < BB
with the management of the affairs of the Group (2015: B(ZE—hF: 8\ -
Nil).
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FifEHiRX
BEBNESHIRBFARNEBESE 2 ATE
RBEFIE165% (Z T —RF 1 165%) Z
PR E B - BEAIMBE 2 ERTHEF
MIBRIRIBEAEB L ERAERDEER ZIRTT
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdiction in which the TMETHE o

Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable outside Hong Kong have been calculated at

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—fE
US$’'000 US$'000
FER FEx

I . Y

Current BIER

—Hong Kong -H5 153 233
— Outside Hong Kong - BE AR 68 117
Net underprovision in prior years BEFERETRFE 895 662
Deferred (Note 16) PEIE (FizE16) 2 3)
Total tax expense for the year REEHIARM T 858 1,118 1,009

ERRBARBRERZ B E QB PAER
FEREIR R TE R R ERBR B A G F 2 IR
B sz SRR BRI R 5T B 2 BR R S 2 $ AR 0

domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are T @

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

as follows:

2016 2015
—E-AF —T—hfF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET
| | | |
Profit before tax BR A% A g A 505 2,685
Tax at the statutory tax rate of R16.5% MEER X E 2 Hi1E
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) —ET—RF 165%) 83 443
Adjustments in respect of current tax of 381 Hi I BN HAfA 18
previous periods 2 895 662
Effect of different rates for companies A Eth B AHE R 48 & 2158
operating in other jurisdictions NRAERTRME 2 2 69 109
Income not subject to tax BARTIRA (1,477) (2,585)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 1,479 2,370
Tax losses utilised from previous periods &) &4 HAfE 2 I E 18 (17) (87)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 MIBERE 43 51
Others EHAfth 43 46
Tax expense for the year REERIBREZ 1,118 1,009
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Up to the year ended 30 April 2016, the Group received
protective assessments amounting to approximately
HK$155,000,000 (equivalent to US$19,923,000) from the
Inland Revenue Department in Hong Kong (“IRD”) in
respect of queries on the modus operandi of the Group
and the chargeability of the profits for the years of
assessment from 2003/2004 to 2009/2010. Objections have
been lodged by the Group against the protective
assessments. In addition, Tax Reserve Certificates
amounting to HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to US$675,000)
have been purchased by two subsidiaries of the Company
in pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded under
protective assessments for these years.

In April 2015, with the assistance of an independent tax
advisor, the Group submitted a settlement proposal as
part of negotiations with the IRD regarding this case. As at
the close of the reporting year, the case was still under
review by IRD but based on the latest assessment of the
independent tax advisor, an additional provision of
approximately HK$4,920,000 (equivalent to US$632,000)
was made in the financial statements for the year ended
30 April 2016. Despite the unknown outcome, the Group
is of the view that sufficient tax provisions have been
made in the financial statements based on the information
available.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS FR IR M
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—E—X"FMA=+H

Fri8BiRE X (
HE_Z-R"FHA=1THILFE ~&£H
EREEAEEN T = /_—_ZETNFE_
TN,/ T TFEIREELEEN G
Flz BT o EH  BEREBBER (B
B 1) R M FE R 49 155,000,000 7 (FH 5
719,923,000% 70 ) - AEE E SR E 4T
IR R - o RRARMRHBAGE
REEANZSTFEREETIRATE I N2
i B = (& (85,250,000 T H S R
675,000 7T ) Z f#HiZ o

MRZZE—RFMA - EBLRISER 2158
T AEBERARRER — MRS RIS
RIERERZ D RBREFER ' HiH
BINEERZENS  EREB L HERN 2
BHAE  EREE-_T—AFNA=1H
FTFENTBHRRPELBINEED
4,920,000 7T (85 R 632,000367T) - B E
HERDAN  EASERBERBAIES
MERR I B REZ AEL TR FIERE -
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BA RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E-RFMEA=TH

10. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 10. R (&E1E) ZF

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, after
taking into account the Share Subdivision in June 2015.

The calculation of the diluted (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic (loss)/earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
issue for the year ended 30 April 2016.

The calculations of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings
per share are based on:

FREA(ER), BINDREARRRER A
BEFE (B1R), A RFRERTERR
ZIEFAEEE - HEHA AT —0F
PNA LR B IRAR o

FhEE(BR), BAINDREARRER A
BEFE (B1R), B E - stERER
ZEBBRMEFHETIFAESREN(E
B)/BNEAERZFAESBTEERZ
BE - WERLARINETFOBNHAA L#
SEEN BB ETT RS LA T B
EERT-

BE_Z-RFOA=THILFE  x&EH
WEDBETAEEEN LB -

SIREAREE (B R),/ B RE T8
B

2016
ZE-RE

2015
—E-hHF

(&) B

(Loss)/earnings

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the 5tEFAXEAR (E18) /B FIE

Company, used in the basic
(loss)/earnings per share

PrEMZ N AR AR
(&8, H (FXT)

calculation (US$'000) (560) 1,676
Weighted average number of EERZMEFIGE

ordinary shares
Weighted average number of ordinary st B SRER (E18) BF|E

shares in issue during the year FrfE A2 FRE TR

used in the basic (loss)/earnings per Z IR E (FRY) (A aE)

share calculation ('000) (Note) 3,514,036 3,418,449
Effect of dilution — weighted average HEyE LTEko

number of ordinary shares: w98

Share options ('000) (Note) RERRHE (F12) (Hfat) - 728

3,514,036 3,419,177

Note:

Adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015.
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11.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S R 2R Y

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

DIVIDENDS 11. BE
I Y
2016 2015
—E-RE —TREF
US$’'000 US$'000
FER F=ET
I Y
Interim, paid, of 0.15 HK cents B B B A B AR
(2015: 0.192 HK cents) per ordinary 0. 158 (ZZF—h%F :
share (Note) 0.192 L) (#7E) 681 843
Final, proposed, of nil (2015: 0.05 HK BORARHIRR S (T —RF:
cents per ordinary share) (Note) TR MAZ0.05 L) (Ffaz) - 226
681 1,069
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final EETEEMEE_T—"FOA=FTH1t
dividend for the year ended 30 April 2016. FEIRM RIS -
Note: Wit -
Dividends for the year ended 30 April 2015 were adjusted for the effect of BE_ T RAFNA=Z+tHLEEEZREER_ZE—H
Share Subdivision in June 2015. FERNAGROFR ZEIEHFE -
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30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. Y% - RERRHE

Leasehold
improvements
HENERE
US$'000
Txn

Furniture and
equipment
B RRME

US$'000

TEn

Motor
vehicles

RE

US$'000
FET

Total
At
US$'000
TR

30 April 2016

At 1 May 2015:

—E-A¥EA=1A

R-Z-hAFAA—H:

Cost AR 1,874 3,899 37 6,144

Accumulated depreciation Z:HiE (1,855) (3,664) (291) (5,810)

Net carrying amount REFE 19 235 80 334
At 1 May 2015, net of RZZ-RFHRA-H"

accumulated depreciation MR REHTE 19 235 80 334
Additions NE 193 214 - 407
Disposals e - (2 - (2)
Depreciation provided during the year A E R BT E (108) (151) (60) (319)
Exchange realignment i 3 B - 3) M 4)
At 30 April 2016, net of RZE—"EMA=1H "

accumulated depreciation MR REHTE 104 293 19 416
At 30 April 2016; RZE—R"FMNA=1A:

Cost B AR 2,058 3,750 367 6,175

Accumulated depreciation Z:tinE (1,954) (3,457) (348) (5,759)

Net carrying amount FEFE 104 293 19 416
30 April 2015 “E-HTFMA=1H
At 1 May 2014: RZZ-NFERA—H:

Cost B R 1,859 4,081 376 6,316

Accumulated depreciation Z:tinE (1,784) (3,837) (236) (5,857)

Net carrying amount REZE 75 244 140 459
At 1 May 2014, net of RZZ-—MERA-H"

accumulated depreciation MR REHTE 75 244 140 459
Additions NE 17 133 - 150
Disposals HeE - (2) = @
Depreciation provided during the year A E & E T & 73) (140) (60) (273)
At 30 April 2015, net of R-E—RFWA=1+H"

accumulated depreciation MR REHTE 19 235 80 334
At 30 April 2015; RZZE-RFMA=1A:

Cost A 1,874 3,899 371 6,144

Accumulated depreciation Z:tiE (1,855) (3,664) (291) (5,810)

Net carrying amount REFE 19 235 80 334
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B RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has
been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management. There are a number of
assumptions and estimates involved in the preparation of
cash flow projections for the period covered by the
approved budget. Key assumptions include the expected
growth in revenues and gross margin, timing of future
capital expenditures, long term growth rates and selection
of discount rates. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and
market development expectations. Judgement is required
to determine the key assumptions adopted in the cash
flow projections and changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect these cash flow projections. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections for sales
of merchandise and others are 11% (2015: 11%) and 15%
(2015: Nil) respectively. The estimated growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-generating units
beyond the five-year period is no more than 5%.

13. GOODWILL 13. &
I . Y
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET
1 I S —
At 1 May, net of accumulated impairment 7F A —H - 1k 2HRE 26,333 26,333
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 26) Wi — R BT 8 & =) (BT 5% 26) 1,411 =
Impairment during the year FNFIE (887) =
At 30 April, net of accumulated impairment A A =+H - Ik 2HRE 26,857 26,333
At 1 May: REA—AB:
Cost B A% 36,238 34,827
Accumulated impairment KEHRE (9,381) (8,494)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 26,857 26,333
Impairment testing of goodwill AR E R
Goodwill has been allocated to the following cash- FEBESEZE THIREES ELERER
generating units for impairment testing: A
o Sales of merchandise; . BEREEE
e Provision of services; and o IRHRK: R
e Others o Hfh

ReEFBUMARESERIEEFERE
BEETE  FATEAEINNSHERELEN
VAR AEEERNRSRERAFE -
FREEH EBEEERHRZRE RETE
B RAERBE R - TEBRRBIEWRE
MERZZFEHEER « RRE AT 2 MHE
M REERERAAREE - EHER
BAIRBRERERATFERRETSEETE
HZMREE - RETRESRETRAFEA
ZEEBRERNBZELHE  MEEHREL
BEHZERSREBINEEATE - B R
HEREMHRESRETFARANMBIRE S
AAEINNB(ZE—FHF : 1%) R15% (=
—RFE) WA TEFHHUIESELE
IR REMANBEERE NS 5% °

BARBEERBRAF
“T—REFER 127
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BA RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

13. GOODWILL (continued)
During the year under review, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of US$887,000 (2015: nil) in connection
with goodwill arising from the acquisition of a 60% interest
in AYNTEREEHREEEER QAT (Shenzhen Guo Cai
Sheng Tang Investment Co. Ltd.*) (“Guo Cai Sheng
Tang”). The impairment is made based on the results of
impairment tests for the goodwill using their values in use
in accordance with IAS 36.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

13.

[5E-16))

REBEFEARN  AEERKEF)TMBERSE
EREEEARAR(BARREE]) 60% =
M EE A 2 P52 W R R (B /E5 18 /2 887,000 % 7T
(ZZ—RF &) c ZZEREDREHES
FTERIEI6TRIR A A EE 2 B R EA
AERMED o

PRESReELBEUNPNE ZREABEN
T

Sales of merchandise  Provision of services Others Total
BREE RALARH Hitr Rt
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-RE ZF-0F ZE-AF “T-0fF ZB-RF ZF-0F CE-AF “T-0F
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USH000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$000
FEx FExr FER FTER FER TER FEr  TErx
| | | | | |
Goodwill [EES 26,333 26,333 - - 524 - 26,857 26,333
14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 14. AHLESRMEE
] | | |
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
US$’'000 US$'000
FER FET
| | | |
Beginning of the year F4]) 84 84
Reversal of impairment credited to the FRFFABRER
statement of profit or loss 2R ERE]
during the year (Note 6) (BizE o) 36 -
Fair value gain credited to the other FRFFAEMEEY S
comprehensive income during the year Z AT ERE 109 -
Club membership, at fair value gMeE R AYE) 229 84

The fair value of the club membership is determined with
reference to the market price quoted for the relevant club.

* For identification purpose only
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30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

15. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. R—REERAIZRE

! | | |

2016 2015

—E-RE —F-hF

Us$'000 US$'000

FxEx FTET
1 Y S A

Share of net assets e B EFE 10 10

10 10

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows: REBERLERRAZFHBMOT -

./ | | _____________________| |
Percentage of

BB
Place of

Particulars of registration Ownership  Voting Profit  Principal
Name issued shares held and business interest  power  sharing activities
1 RACROROZHE SEMREKLY FiEE RER BNIE FEXRE
./ | | _____________________| |
CSC Consultancy Co., Ltd.  Registered capital of ~ People's Republic of 50 50 50  Dormant
ERRE AR RMB1,500,000 China LEXT

EMERARE hEE ARKANE

1,500,000

The investment in a joint venture is indirectly held by the R—RAL DT ZIEE Ty mARN RIS -
Company.
The following table illustrates the financial information of TEHETBEAZAEBASL AT WK
the Group's joint venture which is not material. BE o

2016 2015
i —FT-hF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FEx
| | | |
Share of the joint venture's loss for the EiEEERRIFERBER
year and total comprehensive loss FRETHEBBER
for the year - =
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEEREGERAIZEE
Group's investment in the joint venture 2 FEERTEE 10 10

R EEARAT
s il i

—= /N
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30 April 2016
—E—ARFMA=TH

16. DEFERRED TAX 16. EEHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during FENEEFRIBERE(BE)22FHNOT ¢

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EERIBEE

| | | |
Decelerated tax Decelerated tax

depreciation depreciation
allowances allowances
R BIRTHIE
wERE mERE
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hF
US$'000 US$'000
FER F=ET
I . Y
At beginning of year REL (14) an
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FARBERPMR(GTA)
the statement of profit or loss during ZIBEIEFRIE ()
the year (Note 9) 2 3)
Gross deferred tax assets at end of year RERZIELEFRIBE ELE (12) (14)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE

| | | |
Accelerated tax Accelerated tax

depreciation depreciation
allowances allowances
nERFLIE INERBIIE
ERE TERE
2016 2015
AL —ZE-hF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
I . Y
Gross deferred tax liabilities at REY R4 2 IR IR
beginning and at end of year BfE®EE 2 2
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17.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S R 2R Y

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 16. R IE ()

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and BHERY  ETREEHEEAERABEDTE
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial SRR R AP S8 o AT T A5 RSk B /Y
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax E 2 AEBIRERIBABR DT

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

2016 2015
—E-AF —T—hF
US$'000 US$'000
FxEx FET
1 I Y
Deferred tax assets RIENIAE 7 (12) (14)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIAE G 2 2
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RErE BB R R ERZ
consolidated statement of financial position — IEIEF{IE & & /FE (10) (12)
TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BERE 5 RK
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of R|ERR  BURESRFTIREZBH R
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BT
follows:

2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET

1 O N
Within 30 days 30 KA 2,967 3,197
31 to 60 days 3N EL0K 369 299
61 to 90 days 61 290K 469 540
91 to 365 days 91 & 365K 782 270
Over 1 year HBiE—F 46 74
4,633 4,380
Impairment VERIE] (241) (144)
4,392 4,236

ERERREEBRAR 131
—F AR

—= /N



Notes to the Financial Statements
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30 April 2016
—E-RFMEA=TH

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally 60 to 90 days. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivables balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables approximates to its fair value.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

17.

W E SR )
REBERF2ESBRREBMEEFRE
7 B —MREEBERBENAFKE - FE
H—MEBOZENXR - BATFHEESE
EIREE - AEBEBSKE MR E 2 EIKIE
MRS BRABIES] - WA B E BB EPY - AR
EREEERR SAEEETHRTAL
KUz #rEE - ANEEY R EERE BRI
EHRFEEAEFERREREMINREER
i o AR SRR T TETHI B - BUE SR
R EEERENFERE -

FEU R Z PR K 2 BB B E A T

2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZT—AF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET

I . Y
At beginning of year REL 144 386
Impairment losses recognised (Note 6) B HERREEE (K17t 6) 106 125
Amount written off as uncollectible W sH AT AT I Bl 2 FRE (35) (3695)
Exchange differences M 5, =58 26 )
At end of year R 241 144

The individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate carrying amount before provision of
US$241,000 (2015: US$144,000) relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties or were in default of payments
and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

BEMEREAEA241,00ET(ZE—H
F 1 144,000 7T ) WE R E B 5 FE W ER 3K
TERE B SRS NEAEENEZEFEA
B xS EWRERRIE A AU B o

FRABEREZERE S RF 2 ERE DT
T

2016 2015
AL —ZT—AF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET

I . Y
Neither past due nor impaired I g HR OB 2,373 2,301
Less than 3 months past due BEAD R =1E A 1,835 1,897
3 to 6 months past due A== E A 184 38
4,392 4,236
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17.

18.

TRADE RECE'VABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

V=A\

I 8 SR (B 2 R RS R A E TR
P %SRRI EEQRE -

B8 BB I AR (E 2 WG IR B — HE R A SR
BERFABLHBEZBYITFER - REB
H&s  EERRBANERARELRE
BE AREEERIESAEY  UKR
RREEHRIA 2D -

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. FE{f&1E - &R EfbpE W Z1E
RECEIVABLES
. /- | | |
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET
. |/ | |
Prepayments Ja it EoE 1,269 1,186
Deposits ®"E 525 498
Other receivables Hib e I8 1,216 1,621
3,010 3,305

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

A EEEYEBESRE < 5T A Ll iRz
& B E B BT B R AR08k < R WGRIR A
B -

R EEARAT
N iRy 199
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30 April 2016
- R"FMA=1+H
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. BERBFESEZHER
I Y
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—hF
US$’'000 US$'000
FER FET
1 | | |
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEIER 24,956 17,044
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RIEHR - ZAEBEUARKINE RS R
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") iR 17 &5 82 49453000 T(=ZF — R F ¢
amounted to approximately US$453,000 (2015: 1,602,000%7T) - ARET A EHER AR
US$1,602,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other L EHE o SR - BIERE A BRI 2 INE
currencies. However, under the People’s Republic of BIREOI R AETE EERNETERE © K
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and EEHIREREETINE Y g~ R1T
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of AR H A H i o
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on PITFERIEEREITERMNEAE ZZFHT)
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are KRB - BB FEHER2ERHHA—B2=
made for varying periods of between one day and three BAAE  RIEAEBZEBIRSEEM
months depending on the immediate cash requirements E RS REEBTER ARG R < iR1T4
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short B2 T TE AT HE 05088 2 (BB R AFERTT ©
term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
20. TRADE PAYABLES 20. BNE SR
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of NBEER  ENEFRIIREZEHH VR
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as o
follows:

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hfF
US$’'000 US$'000
FER FET
| | | |
Within 30 days 30 KA 4,594 3,752
31 to 60 days 31E60K 368 908
61 to 90 days 61 290K 2 5
91 to 365 days 91 & 365K 87 5
Over 1 year Him—F 49 92
5,100 4,762
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ZERNESERIITEE - T —MRIROK

normally settled on 60-day terms. HABR)B1E -
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22.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S R 2R Y

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EFtRARAEMEMRIE
I . Y
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—RHEF
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FETT
1 ] | |
Accrued expenses RE- 3,645 3,895
Other payables Hh e 5K 7,291 7,269
10,936 11,164
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HibENZRIBI TR - FHER AMREA o

average term of two months.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 22. EEBEKEF
e e N O R
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hF
Note US$'000 US$'000
B FEx FET
e Y [ N E——
Defined benefit plan TERER A ET S (a) 338 598
Other long term post-employment  H b & #i{E 8 Bk
benefits 1&F) (b) 174 211
512 809
Notes: st :
(a) Defined benefit plan (a) EEEFE
The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its AREBMAHEFELEKRSEES R T EMETE
qualifying employees in Taiwan. Under the plan, the employees are BAEEl - BIEZE - BEFESSmER R
entitled to retirement benefits at 3% of their final salary on BERZZRRES 3% ZRRER -
attainment of a retirement age of 55.
According to the laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is BIEAEEIEREH  AEEARESEEES
obliged to pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, disability RERK BEXGWAZEZEN  WIRES
or death, post-employment benefits based on the number of years BEERBEHRSRTEHH S T RRER -
of services and final average salary. The Group carried out an AEBR-_Z—AFNA=1+HELEESENK
actuarial valuation as at 30 April 2016 of its obligation for post- BREEET R IEE A -
employment benefits payable to its employees in Taiwan.
The trustees review the level of funding in the plan by the end of FEAREARE KRB LB ELKTE -
each reporting period. Such a review includes the asset-liability ENAECERERYER RS SRR EIEK
matching strategy and investment risk management policy. This B AEERFESREGHEBETERE - ZTA
includes employing the use of annuities and longevity swaps to RIEEEERERRTHRE -
manage the risks. The trustees decide the contribution based on
the results of the annual review.
The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the ZH BTSRRI BARATHTERSGRRE
life expectancy for pensioners and equity market risk. s R L B o

AR EEARAT
- wi AR ERE
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30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

22. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) Defined benefit plan (continued)
The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the
defined benefit obligations were carried out at 30 April 2016 by Hsu
Mao-Chin Actuary, a qualified actuary, using the projected unit
credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

22. EERAKER )

fizE - (&)

(@) EEERE ()
TEENETREL SAIEEGE TR
—AEMAZ+Am—AEREEE - REKE
HRIEH - TN R BB G EART -

REBERRFAZETEBEBRROT ¢

filipz e
FEHH SRR

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increases

2016 2015
—B-XRE —T-RF
% %

1.0 20

3.0 30

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at
the end of the reporting period is shown below:

RBEMRZERBRREEHBESNAT -

Increase in rate

=

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

net defined net defined

benefit benefit

obligations Decrease in rate obligations

EREEF EHEEA

EEFH EEFHR

#n R = i, GR2)

% US$'000 % US$'000
FEx FEx

2016 —ERF
Discount rate ARIR &

Future salary increase RRFEERE
2015 —ZT—REF
Discount rate ARIR %

Future salary increase RRFFRIGRE

0.5 (28) 0.5 31
0.5 30 0.5 (28)
0.5 (35) 0.5 38
0.5 38 0.5 (34)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period.
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B S R 2R Y

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

22. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 22. EEBKER &)
Notes: (continued) BisE - (&)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EREBRAFE ()
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of REREBRRER A EIERAENT -

profit or loss in respect of the plan are as follows:

2016 2015
—E-XF —T—AhF
US$'000 US$' 000
FErn F=
| | | |
Current service cost BB RIS A 13 13
Net interest MBFRE 12 14
Net benefit expenses recognised in RITHREAERZ
administrative expense B FEE 25 27
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair ERENEERGFEEEZ ATEZBNT

value of plan assets are as follows:

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in

Pension cost charged to profit or loss other comprehensive income
REEBNRZERERE REH2ERABSRTREE/ (58)
Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes Sub-total
arising from ~ arising from included in
Current Sub-total changesin  changes in other
At beginning service Net included in Benefit  demographic financial ~ Experi prehensive  Contributi Exchange Atend
of year cost interest  profit or loss paid pti pti Jl income by employer  realignment of year
ADgHER BBER ARM
55 ABEE RBEL,  HEELEZ 2EUA

M EERA  HERE LNt BHEN RERE BERD  faaR whit EEfR EdEE RER
US$000  USS000  USS'000  USS000  USS'000  USS'000  USS000  USS'000  US$000  US§'000 US000  US§000
T&T T&T Tin Tin Fan Farn & T&n TiT TiT T&T TiR
[N [ I R U N N ——

206 I
Defined benefit EERTIEE

abligations 824 13 16 29 (23) 15 52 (18) 49 - (37) 842
Fairvalue of planassets  BEEZATE (226) - 4 0] 23 - - 2 2 (307) 8 (504)
Benefitliability 3= 598 13 12 25 - 15 52 (16) 51 (307) (29) 338
2015 ZE-5E
Defined benefit EEREE

abligations 926 13 18 3 (152) (19 - 5 3 - (16) 824
Fairvalue of planassets ~ sTBIAZZATE (201) = (0] (0] 152 = - (1) (1) (179) 3 (226)
Benefit ligbility Bilak 5 13 1 7 - (19 - X] Kl (175) (13 598

ERNEREMARAT)
gk mid- Ry

—=" /N
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22.

23.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 22. EERNKERN @
Notes: (continued) Mk : (4)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EREBREE (FE)
The defined benefit contributions in Taiwan are made to a fund RAEZ EBENHRIIA—RE /8 BBNER
administered by the government of Taiwan. The major categories ZESEH - HEEETERAMEZTREER
of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of the total plan SIFEBRELBEATEZADLIT
assets of the centrally administered fund are as follows:
! ! | |
2016 2015
ZE-XF —T—REF
% %
/1 | | |
Equity instruments AT A 49 50
Debt instruments BEFTA 31 28
Deposits T 17 19
Others Hith 3 3
The Group expects to contribute US$29,000 to its defined benefit AEBBRAR -_Z—+F 2 EREAGEMRKA
planin 2017. 29,0003 7T °
The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end RBERR - ERBEFNEEFHR121F - (=
of the reporting period is 12.1 years (2015: 12.3 years). T—RF 123F) -
(b)  Other long term post-employment benefits (b) HitRHESRERKEF
The balance represents provision for long service payment as BRTEE TRERRER 2 A RBRB 2
required by certain jurisdictions. Termination benefits are payable B - RIERANEESEESRNBHA - e
when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date BEME BB RRRZERT MR EARA
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in FXAT -
exchange for these benefits.
SHARE CAPITAL 23. B&
Shares gy
| | | |
2016 2015
=F—XF —F—5F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
1 . Y
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 (2015: 2,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000 (=& —FHF :
ordinary shares of US$0.004 2,000,009,000) I AR E B
(2015: US$0.02) each (Note (c) 0.00457T (ZF—A%F
0.023%7T) 2 & BB (K1t (c) 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE
3,531,975,671 (2015: 684,705,279) 3,531,975,671 (ZE—RHF :
ordinary shares of US$0.004 684,705,%7% P B AR T (2
(2015: US$0.02) each (Note (c) 0,045 (ZF A%
0.02%7T) Z EmAk (f17t (c)) 14,128 13,694
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23. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)
The movements in share capital during the year are as

follows:
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=

23.

Hﬁﬁ} &)
EWJ&$Z“§MD—F :

Number of
ordinary Share
shares in issue Capital
ERTEERK [} &
US$'000
FEx
. | | | |
At 1 May 2014 R-F-mFRA—H 683,569,279 13,671
Issue of ordinary shares BITE R
— employees share option scheme — e BEAEST 2
(Note (a)) (H15%(a) 1,136,000 23
At 30 April 2015 and RZE—AFMA=1THK
1 May 2015 —E—RFHHA—H 684,705,279 13,694
Issue of ordinary shares (Note (b)) BT E @A (M EE b)) 20,000,000 400
Share Subdivision (Note (c)) B R4 (B3t (c) 2,818,821,116 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note (d)) WEE—RM B AR (KaE () 8,449,276 34
At 30 April 2016 RZZE—RFEMA=+H 3,531,975,671 14,128
Notes: Htat -
(a) In the prior year, the subscription rights attaching to 1,136,000 share (a) REFER » 1,136,000 BREFTHENREED
options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.70 per REREBIR070B T 2 RBEERTEME
ordinary share (Note 24), resulting the issue of 1,136,000 shares of 24) - gﬁ%‘ﬁLBé,OOO%HﬁﬁﬁOOZ%ﬁ:Z

US$0.02 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately US$102,000.

On 17 June 2015, a total of 20,000,000 ordinary shares (or
100,000,000 ordinary shares after Share Subdivision) were allotted
and issued to six subscribers pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the subscription agreement dated 1 June 2015 entered by and
between the Company and the subscribers. The net proceeds from
the subscription were approximately HK$64,200,000 (equivalent to
US$8,252,000).

On 22 June 2015, the shareholders of the Company approved to
subdivide the then-existing issued and unissued shares of US$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company into five subdivided
shares of US$0.004 each (“Share Subdivision”) and to change the
board lot size of trading in the shares from 2,000 shares to 10,000
subdivided shares. The Share Subdivision became effective on 23
June 2015.

On 25 November 2015, a total of 8,449,276 consideration shares
were allotted and issued to RIITTE R EREEL AR A A
(Shenzhen Guocai Lixin Investment Management Company
Limited*) and & 3§ £ (Wu Yueyun*) (“Vendors") as consideration
for the acquisition of a 60% interest in Guo Cai Sheng Tang by a
subsidiary of the Company. The fair value of the consideration
shares at the acquisition date was US$1,379,000.

For identification purpose only

AR5 18 /3R & KB4 %8 (B F X AT £9 102,000
ETT e

R-ZZT—RAENA+TERA BREARGERE S
RZZE—RFNA— B2 RBEHEAOIER
kit ARARIAANBRBHERERETAR
20,000,000/ E @ R(KERHIF AR A
100,000,000 A% & A% ) - 2R B R fE = IHM A5
I8 5% 5 49 /5 64,200,000 7T (#8 2 7 8,252,000 3

TL) e

R-ZE—RAENA-+-8  RNATBERLES
AARBRAFFREECRETHNERTEITR
REBEITRDIFA A AR SR EE0.004E T 2 #f
MM ([RBIFMA])  TBBRHRHZEFEE
B 17 B9 2,000 A% A% 15 3 25 % 10,000 A% 4+ A B 15 ©
BOFAR =T —RF A+ =A4K -

R-ZE—RAF+—A=+hHA  FARERIFE
BRI EREE Eﬁﬁ&’&‘l&é&ﬂﬂé((ﬁfﬂ)@ﬁ
B REATEFL8,449, 276 RRERD - ERAR
—HKM B A RKEBERRE 0% B RE o )?‘
WiER - RERHD ZAFER1,379,000% 7T

EHEF
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 24, BBIRRESTE

A share option scheme (“2002 Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution of
the then sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. The Company terminated the
2002 Share Option Scheme and adopted a new share
option scheme (“2011 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years up to 2021. Under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme, the Company’s board of directors or a committee
thereof may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe
for shares in the Company at a price per share of at least
the higher of (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of the offer of the relevant option; and (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer,
provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less
than the nominal amount of one share. Written
acceptance is required on acceptance of the grant of
options. The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme to be adopted by the Company from time
to time must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The
Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the share options in cash.
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. ERESTEI )
The movements in share options under the 2002 and 2011 W TTAFRN-_ZEE_FR T ——FHERRE
Share Option Schemes during the year were as follows: HE T zERESD :
I I e
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T-HF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
(Note) (Note)
it S BRE ¥ B
T8 EgE 178 2R
(Hzt) (Fat)
HK$ per share ‘000  HKS$ per share ‘000
SRER T SR 15
| | ____________________________| _________________________|
At beginning of year REA - - 0.700 3,034
Granted during the year REARER 1.000 50,000 - -
Exercised during the year RERNBITE - - 0.700 (1,136)
Lapsed during the year RERNB LMK - - 0.700 (175)
Cancelled during the year RNERD T - - 0.700 (1,723)
At end of year REHR 1.000 50,000 = =
Note: orz
The share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme have not been TR EERESE T EREAM T —RESA
adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015. MBI AN E e R -
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the RER R{TEHEBREZITEHRERTEER
following exercise periods and exercise prices: T

Number of options Exercise price* per share Exercise period
BREHR BRITEE* 1TEEH
‘000 HK$
T4 BT
| | ________________________________|
50,000 1.000 6 November 2015

to 5 November 2018
—E-HF+—AKBE
—ZE—-N\F+—HAEH

* The exercise price of the share options was subject to adjustment & K72 TR AR 7 (AR Bk 369 T AT IR ok L dE (oL
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the B BREZITRESFEERE -
Company's share capital.
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

25.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

24.

AE AR REST 8l ()

BI%  DARSAE S A 2 BB AR RE 2 A A Th{E R
18 - B ET A EE AR B e ET
Wit Rz SRR N 2 R B - &
TIREAZERRRNEAIERE -

6 November

Date of grant 2015

—E-HF
REBH +—A<A8

| | |

Share price at date of grant (HK$ per share) RE B # 2 RE (BREBT) 0.93
Trigger price (HK$ per share) EEER (BRET) 2.00
Observation days (day) BRAER) 5
Expected volatility (%) & HA IR 08 (%) 34.9407
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 B ) 2K (%) 1.1840
Expected life of options (year) R 2 TRETERMR (5F) 3
Dividend payout (%) KB (%) 40

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past three years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 76
and 77 of the financial statements.
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26.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 25 November 2015, a subsidiary of the Company
acquired a 60% equity interest in Guo Cai Sheng Tang
from the Vendors. Guo Cai Sheng Tang is engaged in the
provision of investment management advisory services in
the People’s Republic of China. The acquisition was made
as part of the Group's strategy to widen it's business
scope. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was
agreed at RMB6,000,000 and was satisfied in form of
shares of the Company based on the framework
agreement dated 26 October 2015. A total of 8,449,276
consideration shares were allotted and issued to the
Vendors based on the closing share price of the Company
of HK$0.866 at the date of the framework agreement.
Details of the acquisition can be found under
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages
13 to 14 of this annual report.

The share price of the Company increased to HK$1.27 on
25 November 2015, day of completion and the fair value
of the purchase consideration for the 60% equity interest
in Guo Cai Sheng Tang was increased to approximately
RMB8,800,000 (equivalent to US$1,379,000) accordingly.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Guo Cai Sheng Tang at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of 40% identifiable net assets.

The Group incurred transaction costs of US$63,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed
and are included in general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. None of
the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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26. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 26. WE—XMBRE )
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BHERERBEB ZAHNEERBEND
Guo Cai Sheng Tang as at the date of acquisition were as FELAT
follows:

2016
—E-RE
Note Us$'000
s FER
| | | |
Cash and bank balances R & RIRITHEER 24
Accruals and other payables JEETE B & E b B FIE (77)
Fair value of net liabilities acquired EWEEEFEATE (53)
Less: non-controlling interests o IR R 21
(32)
Fair value of purchase consideration: BERERATE:
Consideration shares RERHD
—issued on 25 November 2015 -R-E—AF
+—AZTHARET 23 1,379
Goodwill e 13 1,411
An analysis of the net cash inflow in respect of the HUEME R B AEENRSRAFEIN
acquisition of the subsidiary is as follows: W

2016
—F-RF
US$'000
FER
1 [
Fair value of purchase consideration BEREZATE 1,379
Less: Consideration shares issued B BEITRERD (1,379)
Cash and bank balances acquired EYEEIR & RIRTTHEER (24)
24
Guo Cai Sheng Tang remained dormant since the BERREEWEUR—BEEEER  #E=
acquisition and has recorded a loss of US$133,000 in the T—RNFENOA=THIEFEELGFEEEBREREE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and did not 15 518 133,000 3 7T & ¥ 7R 55 [ A W W08
contribute any revenue to the Group for the year ended BIEAER -
30 April 2016.
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the sz B R EHETT » AIRFEAEESE
year, the revenue from continuing operations of the wE 2 WE kR AEE 2 BB A
Group and the loss of the Group for the year would have 94,053,000 7T % 799,000 £ 7T, ©

been US$94,053,000 and US$799,000, respectively.
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26. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 26. WEE—xMB AT (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TEREHYM A EARIEIT AR iERS 2 AN E B
information of the Group's subsidiary that have material non- NE BEEREZHBEREE - FIiES
controlling interests, Guo Cai Sheng Tang. The amounts HAREEERNEEBRNA R BEEMZS
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: R

27.

2016
—F-RF
US$'000
FER
| | |
Total expenses, loss for the year and FERRAY  FEBBER
total comprehensive loss for the year FEEHEBRER (133)
Current assets mEEE 6
Current liabilities mEE & (191)
Cash flows used in operating activities and SRS FERRS
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents NI e EEEB R AFE (18)
DISSOLUTION OF SUBSIDIARIES 27. BEHELIE
I ) S —
2016
—E-RE
Note US$'000
BitEE FTER
| | | |
Net assets of the subsidiaries under dissolution BB AR EEFE -
Exchange reserve realised bE N BRI 5
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries RE B AR 2 &g 6 (5)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BB ARZIRE R
in respect of the dissolution of subsidiaries REFBEBEE 2 RmAFRE -

R EEARAT
N e raay |40

—= /N
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28.

29.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 28. REHERH

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff AEBBREBECEHEREMEES THAE
quarters, furniture and equipment under operating lease By BIFES  GMERRE %EHEE
arrangements. The leases have varying terms, escalation TAH - FARES 2GR RBLEFSE TR -

clauses and renewal rights.

At 30 April 2016, the Group had total future minimum RZZE—RNFNA=+H  AEERED]
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases B EABEN T B E B S 2 K&K
falling due as follows: MEFKIBWT :
I I e
Office premises and Furniture and
staff quarters equipment
MAZEBENVRETIRES BMRHRE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-AF —ZT-—HF ZB-R"E —T-AF
US$’000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET FEx FEx
I Y Y Y Y
Within one year —F R 2,107 1,855 116 119
In the second to fifth E-FERE
years, inclusive (BRIEEHEMSE) 424 1,479 175 271
2,531 3,334 291 390
COMMITMENTS 29. Aif
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B PR 5E 28 Pt 2 AR S M E AHESN - LATR
in Note 28 above, the Group had the following capital RASERRERREBEME - BFE KR
commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and 2 BEARFESE

equipment at the end of the reporting period:

2016 2015
=F—XF —TAHF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
I . Y
Authorised, but not contracted for BEAZEBRETY 50 3
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. ERAEALIRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BRABBHEREAMIOATAMZZ BN
these financial statements, the Group had the AEEFANEBHEEATETUTE
following significant transactions with related parties AR5 :

(b)

during the year:

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E-RE

Name of related party Nature of transaction  Note US$'000 US$'000

FREALTER REME Bt = FER FET

| | | | |

Wellbuild International Limited Rental expense (i) - 509

SREREARAR iz alba

Note: FEE -

i) Wellbuild International Limited (“Wellbuild”, together with (i) ZEHBERAR(BE]  ERENES
its subsidiaries, the “Wellbuild Group”) is a controlled RARBEEE) AETHBEELETER
corporation and an associate of Mr. Wang Lu Yen (“Mr. ) (RERITESRFAABFNES)
Wang") who was an executive Director and is a director of ZREHEERBEA - EEER-F
Wellbuild. Mr Wang resigned as an executive Director and a —EF-AZ+=HKRZZ—AFMNA
director of its subsidiary, Tamarind International Limited, on Z+HESRBERTEERENB AR
23 February 2015 and 30 April 2015 respectively. Tamarind International Limited 2 & 5 °
Accordingly, Wellbuild and its subsidiaries are not regarded At - EERENBARN -_Z—HFN
as related parties of the Group subsequent to 30 April 2015. A=+HETBEERATERZBREA

Ik
The prior year's balances represented rental expenses paid EFZeHERENEEEEZESHRX -
to Wellbuild which were determined based on the market W2 EZEM 2z TEES MEEmEE
rate and floor area of the rented premises. TE e

Balances with a related party (b) EREEEALZEE

(i) At 30 April 2016, the Group had nil balance i MZZE—ARFNA=+H K&
with a related company (2015: prepaid rent EWmEFREEAR RS
and rental deposit to a related company of Z-—0F: BN —REBEEERA
US$24,000). ZTaNEE RESES 24,000%

JT) °

ERRREMARAT)
Se—rwea |V
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30. BEHAEALR S ®)

(c)

Compensation of key management personnel () AEBTEEEAE ZEHM
of the Group

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—hHF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
I . T
Short term employee benefits MHEEE R 1,034 1,229
Post-employment benefits 18 B R IKE R
- defined contribution plans - TR HEREE 103 81
Total compensation paid to key YRTEFEEBASE Y
management personnel HriNaazE 1,137 1,310
Further details of Directors’ emoluments are ESTMcE—PHFBERYBRE
included in Note 7 to the financial statements. MsE7 -
The related party transactions in respect of items (a) and FX@ROENEBEATZZENX LT
(b) above also constituted continuing connected HAFEUAEMREZEBRERS - B8
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. FLEMAAUB AT ZHBRHE ©

The disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules have been complied with.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31. €M I AER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the AEBZSEREMTENSFESHRZER
Group's financial instruments as at the end of the (ERUNNE

reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets EMEE
I T D D D .
Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial asset Total
ERRELTE HEESHEE i
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

ZE-xE “T-1F ZEB-xE -T-1F ZE-AE _—T-7F
Note US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$:000 US$'000 US$/000
Wi FER TER  FER TEn  FER FER
| | | | | | |
Available-for-sale financial [t HES 7
asset BE 14 - = 229 84 229 84
Trade receivables EWE ZER 17 4,392 4,236 - - 4,392 4,23
Financial assets included in £t AJEFZ0E « 174
prepayments, deposits REM NGB,

and other receivables SREE 18 1,741 2119 - - 1,741 2119
Cash and cash equivalents & KB £ EEHE 19 24,956 17,044 - - 24,956 17,044
31,089 23,399 229 84 31,318 23,483

Financial liabilities tREE

I e [
Financial liabilities at

amortised cost

BREBHERAIIEzmEHE
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—hfF
Note US$'000 US$'000
ihE=s FEx FET
I T I Y
Trade payables BB SRR 20 5,100 4,762
Financial liabilities included in STAEETE R R E M ES
accruals and other payables FEZemAsE 21 7,291 7,269
12,391 12,031
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32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 32. ¢RI A AT ERAFHEHER
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's AEESRTAZEEERAFE(REE
financial instruments, other than those with carrying HEHENFERBEEERINOT
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as
follows:
Financial assets THREE
| | | |
Carrying amounts Fair value
fREE AFE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hHF —E-RE A%
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn T=r TEn =
| | ] | | |
Available-for-sale financial asset A[{EHESREE 229 84 229 84
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EREMNARe IR EEER  BRES
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, R BN E SR - st ATRNRE - e
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and FEMEBRFIBE s CREE s ARTER
other receivables and financial liabilities included in REMENRIE 2RAGE I ATE  HE
accruals and other payables approximate to their carrying HEEEEMES  RAEBELTDHRZEIA
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these 2 R EMEE AT RN -
instruments.
The fair value of the available-for-sale financial asset is AN ESREECATFTENK2EEHS
determined with reference to the market price quoted for F 2 TisRERERE

the relevant club.

150 Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 32. @ T A2 AT ERAFEEHR ®
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TEREBINAEBESR T A AFEFERE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instrument: &

Asset measured at fair value: BATEFEZEE

As at 30 April 2016 R-Z-—XFEMNA=+H

| ! ___________________________________| |
Fair value measurement using

AT &IRET A VFEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WEBTEZ BAAHERE EAFUEE
HE BAE BAE
(8—FE) (5=F8) (8=F) &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTER TER TER TER
I . .
Available-for-sale financial asset AJftHE4RIEE 229 - - 229
As at 30 April 2015 RZZE—hFMA=1H

I I I ——
Fair value measurement using

ANTREETRATETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERTIZ EAUBE SBATUER
WwE BAE BAE
(B—8E) (B=FE) (B=FE) =
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEr TErx FTErx FTEr
| | | |
Available-for-sale financial asset FJftHE4RIEE 84 - - 84
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN FEBLNE_Ez2EITEAFETZE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ZER NEERINEREE (=T
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil). —RE Mmoo
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RZEBE—ARFNA=+H AEEWEEM
at fair value as at 30 April 2016 (2015: Nil). BAFTEECEMEBE(CE—RF - #) -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. i EMEEEERKE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations. It is, and has been throughout
the year under review, the Group's policy that no trading
in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's short term
interest-bearing bank deposits with a floating interest
rate.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risks.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax
and the Group's equity.

AEENTIEZSRMTIABER S RRITHE
7o ZFEERMIANTIZENDIRAEED
EBEEET - AKENESBHEMERE
ERABE WEERRASEEEELNER
EIEALENEZRRE - RBEREF
EAR—BENR  AEEZBRRTEES
BMIA-

AEENS R TAMEENEEZRAR BN X
R SRR EERBRERSDE SR
% BEFERMNERTEESEZTERD
R - BBURIT -

JES1
AEBESNTENEBDRREERAE
07 B R IE A B BT -

742 30 45 5T 37 FE (T U SR 45 1 40 LA 25

TRHAPEMBEMAIZEARER TENE
ST - NS BEYBR T A A S AN SR B ) A 2R
BRI RS I ] B BV BURIE -

2016 2015

AL “T—hF

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) (decrease)

(decrease) in in profit before in profit before
basis points tax and equity  tax and equity

United States dollar ETT
United States dollar ETT

BRBE A& R B 5L ALt 7

BEX K K

@, ORd)  EinS08d)  HEin O
US$'000 US$'000

FEx FTET

5 12 8

() (12) )
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Company'’s functional currency is United States dollar
and the functional currencies of majority of the
subsidiaries are United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar. The Group's transactions, trade receivables and
trade payables are mainly denominated in these two
currencies.

As the exchange rate of United States dollar and Hong
Kong dollar is pegged, management considers the foreign
exchange risk in this respect is not significant. The Group
has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net
assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
However, as the net foreign exchange exposure of the
foreign operations is not significant, the Group does not
actively hedge this foreign exchange exposure.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and
liabilities held in currencies other than United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar to ensure that net exposure is kept
at an acceptable level, and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

Certain monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.
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3. i EEEERERBE®

NS L B

RRBWEEEBETT - KEHIE R R
MEEEERETLEBT - ARENRX S
FEWE ZREA N ENE ZRRE B LM
BE®IIE -

MRS TR TTE R4 - MU ERERAR
U7 E R SMNER BRI RNEA - REBRE
SINEBHEAETIRE  MRFEEFEFA
NGB RER - AT - ARNEBINEBZF
SNERRAYEIL TEK - MAKE B AT &
&S It SNE R o

AEESTFHRRAAET BTN G
RANEBEERAE  BEAENFAR
MBRAEXKE - AEEFRREELH T
BEARINEE R o

ETEREENRBBUAARKETIR - TR
THERESHR  EREEMBAZRRER
TEZELT  REBEERABHNAFE
23 AEBENRTAENHAREERS
BRI REE B GURE -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. BiIERETEEERBE &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) K T B (48)

| | | | |

2016 2015

i —T—AfF

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) (decrease)

foreign in profit in profit

currency rate before tax before tax

SMERE = BB AT 35 F B Tt ALt 7
EFA (TR #m 0hd) 8 CRd)

% US$'000 US$'000
FER FExT
| | | | |
If United States dollar WZETTH
weakens against RMB AREEE 5 24 70
If United States dollar WETTH
strengthens against RMB AREEFE (5) (24) (70)
Credit risk EERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy FEBRGELRAREERINE=AR
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers 2 AEEBRREMBRAEERRZZM
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit BEREETERERET o I XEES
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances SIBEREWFTIRLE S Bt AEBATH
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's EERRERI TEAK o
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which rEBEMEHEE(BERERR2EE
comprise cash and cash equivalents, an available-for-sale HE —HAHHESREE  BEESR
financial asset, trade receivables, deposits and other o RERAMEWHIE) 2EERRE - T
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a REYHTEEREZ A - MxARKRER
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of ZETAZREE -

these instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has certain concentration of credit risk on the
Group's trade receivables, as the amounts due from the
largest five debtors amounted to approximately
US$2,481,000 (2015: US$2,061,000), representing 56.5%
(2015: 48.7%) of the Group's trade receivables. In order to
minimise the credit risk, management continuously
monitors the level of exposure to ensure that follow-up
actions are taken promptly to reduce the risk exposure or
to recover overdue balances. The Group will also
continuously exploit new opportunities and forge
relationships with new customers with the aim of
broadening its clientele.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
banking facilities.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

B RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

3. AR EEEERBE @)

B ELE S

AR AEERgHLRTREERENE
=FRG FIANEERBERR - EER
BONEFERRER HH  HERITE
RERE - RBEHR AEBRERE S
EREATERAENGEERR  BIKEA
KERAFKIEL2,481,000E T (—B—F4F :
2,061,000 7)) (hAEEEWE 5 KRR
56.5% ( —ZF—F4F : 48.7%) o /& T WIKE
BERR  ERERFEERRERKTE - URER
BN SRER BREFTED « KRR ASE - SiBE
BHRAE R o AEBINGEBYCIEE - I
B RFPEVEE  UIREESE -

ERAAKEREKEZRRELENEERR
M — F B ER NI RERM 17 KE -

REBESER
AEENBRRERDMNARTER  £E
SRERERETR I Mg TE -

BREBECAIAZETBANROMNARER RS
HRzEMABEIIRBERAOT

Within one year

—FR
2016 2015
—E-ARE —T—RF
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET
I . Y
Trade payables FERTE SRR 5,100 4,762
Financial liabilities included in accruals - A fEs+ & K H b ER Z0E
and other payables = Y= 7,291 7,269
12,391 12,031

BREREEARAT
N e rgay |00
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34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 30
April 2016 and 30 April 2015.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Proposed placing of new shares under general
mandate and the lapse of the placing agreement
On 5 June 2016, the Company entered into the placing
agreement ("Placing Agreement”) with the placing agent
whereby the Company conditionally agreed to place,
through the placing agent, on a best effort basis,
690,620,000 new shares of the Company to not less than
six independent placees at the placing price of HK$0.42
per placing share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Placing Agreement.

The Company announced on 4 July 2016 that the Placing
Agreement lapsed as the conditions of the placing had
not been fulfilled on or before 4 July 2016. As such, the
Placing Agreement was terminated and the placing would
not proceed and all rights, obligations and liabilities of the
parties under the Placing Agreement in relation to the
placing should forthwith cease and determine and none
of the parties should have any claim against the other
party in respect of the placing save for any antecedent
breaches.

The Directors are of the view that the lapse of the Placing
Agreement has no material adverse impact on the
business operation and financial position of the Group.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 5 June 2016 and 4 July 2016.
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34.
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WMEHRSEE
BRE—BRREREFTFROREEHE
2R

AAREEERBER -_ZE—RFNARBE
viiEwz ((REHR])  Bit - BRERE
WEZIERREN  RAREREREER
fid & R 32 32 52 ) A E B 4 690,620,000 A% 4
NRZFD T RPN BBILAEA - B2
EEATRIEERDN0.42%TT °
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(continued)

Acquisition of a money lender

On 18 May 2016, Dache Capital Limited, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement for the sale and purchase to acquire the entire
issued share of Tingo Consulting Company Limited
(“Tingo”) and a shareholder’s loan at a consideration of
HK$420,000 (equivalent to approximately US$54,000).
Tingo is a company incorporated in Hong Kong on 23
November 2015 with limited liability and is a holder of a
Money Lenders Licence issued under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Such
acquisition was completed on 19 May 2016.

Acquisition of a company established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC")

On 29 June 2016, F BB RHE B R A A (Shenzhen Sheng
Yun Technology Co. Ltd.*) (“Sheng Yun"), a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an equity acquisition
agreement with Z= 2 (Huang Yunxing*) and EE (Ge
Mingde?*), pursuant to which Sheng Yun agreed to acquire
(i) a 30.6% equity interest in 4B Z BFTREIR AE $HE AR
% AR A7l (Shenzhen Guo Zhi Dao New Energy Vehicle
Sales Services Co. Ltd.*) ("Guo Zhi Dao”) from EEZE
(Huang Yunxing*) at a consideration of RMB0.6; and (ii) a
20.4% equity interest in Guo Zhi Dao from EBHE (Ge
Mingde*) at a consideration of RMB0.4.

Guo Zhi Dao is a company incorporated in the PRC on 11
May 2016 with limited liability and has an unpaid
registered capital of RMB10 million. Its business scope
includes sale of vehicles; sale of renewable energy
vehicles; leasing of vehicles; sale of parts and power
batteries of renewable energy vehicles; sale and
technological development of renewable energy vehicle
products and accessories, renewable energy electronic
products, renewable energy mechanical products and
equipment; domestic trading, import and export of goods
and technology.

The acquisition was completed on 7 July 2016. Upon
completion of the acquisition, the Company through Sheng

Yun, indirectly owned a 51% interest in Guo Zhi Dao.

As at the date of this annual report, Guo Zhi Dao has not
commenced any business.

* For identification purpose only
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. AR B ZBBARRE
THE COMPANY

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hEF
US$'000 US$'000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N B AT 2 36,527 34,988
Total non-current assets ERBEEMERE 36,527 34,988
CURRENT ASSETS nREBEE
Prepayments and other receivables A A5 FRIE Fe EoAth & LR IE 8 59
Cash and cash equivalents e REESZEEE 8,622 425
Total current assets mENE EARE 8,630 484
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Accruals R &R 144 185
Total current liabilities VENEN k] 144 185
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 8,486 299
NET ASSETS BEEFE 45,013 35,287
EQUITY =
Share capital N 14,128 13,694
Reserves (Note) GG 30,885 21,593
TOTAL EQUITY AR 45,013 35,287
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

35. ARQ T Z BT ET @)

Note: Kt -
A summary of Company's reserves is as follows: RABZ FERENT ¢
[ Y I I N I R E—
Share Capital
Share option  redemption  Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus? earnings Total
BRE BXEE
REHEE fE & B4R REEF #st
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Txx TxxT TEx Fxn Fxn Fxn
[ Y I I N I R E—
Balance at 1 May 2014 RZT—NEHA—B#&H# 9,958 69 48 9,883 2,999 22,957
Total comprehensive FEZEKA
income for the year ok - - - - 463 463
Issue of shares 1R 21T 79 - - - - 79
Exercise of share options BITERERE 26 (26) = = - -
Share options lapsed/ FRKM/ FEHZ
cancelled during the year BERRE = (43) - - 43 -
Final 2014 dividend paid BN —WERARS - = = = (1,063) (1,063)
Interim 2015 dividend paid ENZZ-—REFHKE - = = = (843) (843)
At 30 April 2015 RZT—REMNA=+H 10,063 - 48 9,883 1,599 21,593
Balance at 1 May 2015 R-E—RFRA—B&EH 10,063 - 48 9,883 1,599 21,593
Total comprehensive FEE2EBA
income for the year Fx - - - - 879 879
Issue of ordinary shares BITE B 7,852 = = = = 7,852
Share issue expenses B EEITH S (18) - - = = (18)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RB AR 1,345 - - - - 1,345
Equity-settled share option AR HES: i 2 BE A i
arrangement ZH - 141 - - - 141
Final 2015 dividend paid BENZE-RFRERKRE = = = = (226) (226)
Interim 2016 dividend paid BERNZZ—A"EHEHRE - - - - (681) (681)
At 30 April 2016 R-B-X"EMA=+AH 19,242 141 48 9,883 1,571 30,885

The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company'’s shares
issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of the Company is
distributable to equity holders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if () it is, or would after the payment be unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium account.

RARZ BEHAMIERIBEEAEPTKRE 2B QA
Bt 2 XA AR R LA A 75 S i 31T
ZBOEEZER - REBFE-NN\—FQF
% ARRZBHBHIRE HSIK RS
A e R ARBETHBERATEEIRIKT A
SRR BEHBAT RS IR ()R REEZ [ E
HraEk(\REECTEREEINEAER
BTN AR G ERR 2 485 -

ERRFREERAT
“ieReag 07
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36. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

36. TEMBLAFE

TEMNBARFBENT

Name

1

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

AR,/
EUPES Sk

Nominal value

of issued

ordinary share/
registered capital
BRITEERRE/
EMBAEE

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
LN
EEREEIL
Direct Indirect  Principal activities

EE M TEXH

Benchmark Profits Limited

Daohe Capital Limited"
EMEAERAA

Dowry Peacock Group Limited?

eServices Limited

Ever Eagle Limited

Glory Sino Limited

Golden Rules Enterprises Limited

REARAT

IGCS Group Limited

IGCS Intemational Limited

IGCS Limited

International Laboratory
Services Limited

B REREARAE]

SO International (Holdings)
Limited

Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited
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British Virgin Islands
ABARRES

Hong Kong
£

United Kingdom
B

Hong Kong

l

British Virgin Islands
ABARRES

British Virgin Islands
ERRRARES

Hong Kong

i

British Virgin Islands
ERRRARES

British Virgin Islands
ABARRES

Hong Kong

l

Hong Kong

/
Hong Kong
;

British Virgin Islands
EBRRRES

US$1
1%

HKS1

1A
GBP300
0%
HK$100,000
100,000 70

US$1
1%

US$1
1XT

HKS1
18T
US$1
1XT

US$1
1%

HKS2
2B

HK$1
&7

HK$100
100787

US§50,000
50,0003%7T

= 100 Investment holding
REER

100 - Investment holding
REER

- - Investment holding

RERR

- 100 Dormant
TR

= 100 Investment holding
RERR

100 - Dormant
TR

= 100 Investment holding
RERR

- 100 Investment holding
REER

= 100 Dormant
OREK

- 100 Dormant
TR

= 100 Provision of laboratory
services

Rt R

- 100 Dormant
i3S

- 100 Investment holding and
procurement agent

RESBRLRBAE
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36. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 36. FEMEBRATFHE®
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

| | | | |
Percentage of

equity attributable
Nominal value to the Company
of issued b N
Place of incorporation/ ~ordinary share/ EERERDL
Name registration and business  registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ML/ BRITEERRE/
8 e Sk EMRAEE B B TEEK
| | ! | |
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Procurement agent
Limited 0 10,000%7T RERRE
Linmark Development (BVI) British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Procurement agent
Limited ARABRES (E RERE
Linmark Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
ERABRES 157 RERR
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding,
WE (B)ERAF & 2T procurement agent and
trading of merchandise
RARR RBRER
HmE5H
Linmark International Bangladesh Taka4,120,000 = 100 Procurement agent
(Bangladesh) Ltd.* ) I 4,120,000+ RERR
Linmark International Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100 Investment holding and
{Hong Kong) Limited A 200,000/ T procurement agent
WERR (FE)ARAT RARRRRBAR
Linmark Merchandise People's Republic of China  RMB1,500,000 = 100 Investment holding,
Consultancy (Shenzhen) EARLAE AK#1,500,0007C provision of marketing
Limited** consultancy and product
WEERERHA(RY) development services
BRAR REER - REHSEEAD
RE@RERE
Linmark Westman British Virgin Islands Us§11 - 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited EBEARKS NE REER
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
LT 3 1B EEXH
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100 Dormant
EBABRES (E TEXK
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
BB 10,0007 LEER
Pacific Technologies Limited* United Kingdom (GBP45,000 - - Dormant
EE 45,000 4% TEXK

ERRHERBERAT 141
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E-RFMEA=TH

36. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 36. TEMBE A RS @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

| | | | |
Percentage of

S

equity attributable
Nominal value to the Company
of issued b O
Place of incorporation/ ordinary share/ EiERERDL
Name registration and business  registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AL/ BRAZERRE/
8 B ES Sk EMRAEE B B TEER
| | ! | |
Power Path Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Provision of secretarial and
EEERAH 0 18T nominee services to

the fellow subsidiaries

RRZMERRRMRNER

REAR
Shenzhen Guo Cai Sheng People’s Republic of China - RMB10,000,000 - 60 Dormant
Tang Investment Co. Ltd.* hEARHKNE AR 10,000,000 EEEK
MImERREREEE
ARAR:
Shenzhen Sheng Yun Technology  People’s Republic of China - RMB10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co.Ltd PEARLNE AK#10,000,0007C REER
ABENRARAR
Tamarind International British Virgin Islands USs1 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited RERBARES (B RERR
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and
A 18T trading of merchandise
REBREERES
Tamarind Trading People's Republic of China  RMB5,500,000 = 100 Procurement agent and
(Shanghai) Limited** REARLAE AR 5,500,000 7T trading of merchandise
AELE S (LB)BRAT RBRERERES
Trend Xpress, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding and
AEAARES (B provision of market trend
consultancy services
REZRRRETSHR
EEEE] v
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of market trend
KHRAGRAA B 2T consultancy services and
trading of merchandise
GRS AR SR AR R
AmE 5
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36. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 36. TEMBLARFE@®

37.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

30 April 2016
—E-RFMA=TH

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

| | | | |
Percentage of

equity attributable
Nominal value to the Company
of issued KAF
Place of incorporation/ ~ ordinary share/ EiERERD L
Name registration and business  registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AL/ BRTEBRRE

8 EES ik EMBRAEE i Mg TEXH

1 e e Y

Westman Linmark (Thailand) Thailand Ordinary shares = 100 Procurement agent

Limited gl Baht5,880,000 e
and preference
shares
Baht6,120,000
5,880,000 ¢k
RERK
6,120,000 %k
Westman (Singapore) Singapore $$200,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Private Limited A 200,000 ST REfE

Westown Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant

BRERAA &R 100000787 LEXH

A Daohe Capital Limited (formerly known as Daohe Global Group A — MM 2 A REMEARER AR (AT
Limited), a newly incorporated company, became a wholly-owned EMRREREBRARDR - -—REFRAA-+
subsidiary of the Company on 20 May 2015. HRARARZZ2EMBAR -

# Dowry Peacock Group Limited and Pacific Technologies Limited # Dowry Peacock Group Limited #l Pacific Technologies
were dissolved on 9 June 2015. Limited B =F — AN AL AREL

* Not audited by Emnst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm * A IF i B LK & D BGPTSR A ok &
of the Ernst & Young global network. SR SERS AT R IR B FTEX ©

** Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited and * MEFRERFACRINERRABARKELES
Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) Limited are registered as wholly- (EB)BERARNREHEEETMRIGEE
foreign-owned enterprises under the law of the People’s Republic ¥ o ZFARMIFRE B L KE ALK
of China. They were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or R E A 2K R ET AN RSP 2 PR ABAR K B PR
another member firm of the Emst & Young global network.

+ A 60% interest in Shenzhen Guo Cai Sheng Tang Investment Co. + RYMERRELEEGRARAA 2 60% R
Ltd. is indirectly-owned by the Company on é November 2015. It —E-AFT—ASBHEARAHEERE - ZA
was not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member A3 I 8 B8 2K G R AN 3B 35 AT S A ) E At %2 ok
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. BETAEIE T 2 IRABRK BB -

++  Shenzhen Sheng Yun Technology Co. Ltd., a newly incorporated ++  —FFAMK S REVRYIBER AR R RR
company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on ZE-RENA- T —HRRBARRZZEWE
21 April 2016. It was not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or DF o ZARWIFA BB R KM EBAH
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network. A EAh 22 K @RTEN BT R IRAWAE K BPTEAZ ©

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. #t/EMBEHRE

The financial statements were approved and authorised EFeERN T R"FLATORMERK
for issue by the Board on 14 July 2016. RRMU B ®RE

ERRREMARAT)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FYBHER

RESULTS ES
| | | | | |
Year ended 30 April
BEMA=tHLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—T—f C"—E-=f C"EZ-MmF _"T-hF ZB-iF

US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000

TEL TET TET TEX TER
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(BE7) (BE7) (RE5)
! ! —— [ - [ _—— [ [ ]

Revenue g5 100,621 110,047 103,397 97,872 94,053
Cost of sales HEMR (77,123) (82,459) (76,427 (72,879) (71,024)
Gross profit EF 23,498 27,588 26,970 24,993 23,029
Other income Hibl A 1,399 1,023 1,346 977 639
General and administrative expenses  —f RATHIFE X (22,014) (23,543) (23,329) (23,292) (22,285)
Loss on deregistration of branches BUERMA AR 2 B1R = (193) = - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR W 191 = = = -
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries FHNB AR 2 ER 97) = (138) = (5)
Impairment loss on goodwill BHEREER = = = = (887)
Operating profit Py 2977 4,875 4,849 2,678 491
Interest income FBUA 55 55 7 7 14
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—REERAEE (1) Q) (1) - -
Profit before tax B A A Al 3,031 4,929 4,855 2,685 505
Income tax (expense)/credit e (F%),/ K% (247) 403 (399) (1,009) (1,118)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERRN/(E8) 2,784 5332 4,456 1676 (613)
Attributable to: TH AL :

Owners of the Company KARIEA A 2,784 5,332 4,456 1,676 (560)

Non-controlling interest Eailie iy - - - = (53)
Dividends KE 1,212 2459 1,942 1,069 681
Distribution Mk = = 12,863 = -
Eamnings/(loss) per share (US cents) &k &F,/(E18)(FE(L)

Basic* B+ 0.08 0.16 0.13 0.05 (0.02)

Diluted* g~ 0.08 0.16 0.13 0.05 (0.02)
3 Earnings per share for the years ended 30 April 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 * BHE-Z——F —Z2—=F . _Z-—NFEK-_ZF-7A

have been adjusted for the effect of Share Subdivision in June 2015. FUA=ZTHIEFEZERAFER - —RF AN

B IFANTZEEHAE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

FF =
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
I D T I D D
At 30 April
RmA=+8
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

2% = —ZT-MNF —T-hF ZB-KF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FETT TEr FET FET TER

(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)

(RE7)  (RED)  (KEN)
! ! —— [ —— [ - [ [ ]

Non-current assets ERBEE 27,540 27,488 26,895 26,773 27,522
Current assets MEBEE 28,512 33,937 23,820 24,585 32,358
Total assets BELRE 56,052 61,425 50,715 51,358 59,880
Current liabilities TEAE (16,039) (17,700) (16,993) (17,961) (18,424)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (1,014) (979) (1,005) (809) (512)
Total liabilities BERE (17,053) (18,679) (17,998) (18,770) (18,936)
Net assets EEFE 38,999 42,746 32,717 32,588 40,944

R EEARAT
N e ngay |00

—= /N



Corporate Information

nEER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHANG Qi (Chief Executive Officer)

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (President and Chief Financial Officer)

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil (Company Secretary, General Counsel
and Head of Development and Investments)

ZHANG Li (Co-Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 8 April 2016 and resigned with
effect from 12 July 2016)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WANG Arthur Minshiang
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

WONG Chak Keung (appointed with effect from 1 November 2015)

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS (ceased to be a director
with effect from 5 May 2016)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

ZHANG Qi (Chairman of the Committee)

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil

ZHANG Li (appointed and ceased to act as member of the
Committee with effect from 8 April 2016 and 12 July 2016
respectively)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (Chairman of the Committee)

WANG Arthur Minshiang

WONG Chak Keung (appointed with effect from 5 May 2016)

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS (ceased to act as member
of the Committee with effect from 5 May 2016)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

ZHANG Qi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
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COMPANY SECRETARY

HWANG Han-Lung, Basil (appointed with effect from
14 August 2015)

CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda (resigned with effect from
14 August 2015)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

22nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue,
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Level 10, HSBC Main Building,

1 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
13th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building,
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Citibank, N.A.
48th Floor, Citibank Tower, Citibank Plaza,
3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong

Corporate Information
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Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
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Shareholder Information

REREHF

Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 10 May 2002
Stock Code : 915
Board Lot : 10,000 (with effect from 23 June 2015)
Par Value . US$0.004 (with effect from 23 June 2015)
Trading Currency  : HK$

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2016

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Register of members closed
(for ascertaining shareholders’ rights
to attend and vote at annual general meeting)
Annual general meeting
Interim results to be announced

30 April 2016
14 July 2016

29-31 August 2016
31 August 2016
mid of December 2016*

* subject to change

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 30 April 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders’ rights of attending and
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Monday, 29 August 2016 to Wednesday,
31 August 2016, both days inclusive. In order to be entitled to attend the
annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share
registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 26 August 2016.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile: (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong branch share
registrar promptly of any change of addresses.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Daohe Global Group Limited
1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27537373

Facsimile: (852) 2721 6554

Email: ir@daoheglobal.com.hk
Website: www.daoheglobal.com.hk
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Daohe Global Group Limited
BEBNMRREEBRLQF

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BFRNENEERER —RNEEEBRRETO2E

Tel E5F 1 (852) 2753 7373
Fax 8K : (852) 2721 6554
Website #8335 : www.daoheglobal.com.hk
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